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UNITED STATES
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Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
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or
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No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant nasnitted electronically and posted on its corpov&b site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Régnl&-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the precedigribnths (or for such shorter period that the tesyis was required 1
submit and post such files). Y&I No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K (82®% of this chapter) is not contained herein, aitichot be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgeldfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11l of this Form 104#aay amendment to this
Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlazge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compaBge the definitions
of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filegfid “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of tixchange Act:
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Adtgs O  No

State the aggregate market value of the votingnandvoting common equity held by naiffiliates computed by reference to the price aictvithe common equity was last sold
the average bid and asked price of such commortyeaqsiof the last business day of the registrantist recently completed second fiscal quartere dggregate market value of
the common equity held by non-affiliates as of J80e2013 was $19,581,725, assuming a closing pfi&&.44 and outstanding shares held by non-ati$ of 13,598,420.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO REGISTRANTS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTY
PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hed &ll documents and reports required to be filgdection 12, 13, or 15(d) of the Securities Exge Act of 1934
subsequent to the distribution of securities ursdelan confirmed by a court. Yd§ No O

(APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE REGISTRANTS)
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PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiegficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fomvkroking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown risagcertainties, and other factors that may causeastual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aaimeents expressed or implied by s
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amomgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our main&nce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to mainmafavorable third party manufacturing and supplierangements and relationships, our at
to quickly increase capacity in response to aneiase in demand, our ability to access the marlketability to maintain or lower producti
costs, our ability to continue to finance reseaant development as well as operations and expans$iproduction, the continuing interest
larger market players, specifically Becton Dickinsand Company (“BD”),in providing devices to the safety market, and ottaetor:
referenced in Iltem 1A. Risk Factors. Given theseettainties, undue reliance should not be placefbiavard-looking statements.

Item 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Development of Business

On May 9, 1994, our company was incorporated inaSeto design, develop, manufacture, and marketvative patented safe
medical products for the healthcare industry. @Quoal is to become a leading provider of safety wadbroducts. Advantages of our sa
products include protection from needlestick irgsri prevention of cross contamination through reasd reduction of disposal and of
associated costs.

We have designed, developed, and currently mahnkeeYanishPoin® and PatientS&e products. Ouisii@oint® safety produc
currently consist of 1mL tuberculin, insulin, anileegy antigen VanishPoirt  syringes; 0.5mL, 2miml3 5mL, and 10mL VanishPoirft
syringes; the VanishPoifft  autodisable syringe; WanishPoint® IV catheter; the VanishPoftblood collection tube holder; and
VanishPoint® blood collection set. The VanishP@&irgroducts are designed specifically to prevent resditk injuries and to prevent reu
The patented designs permit the automated retracofithe needle directly from the patient after pdetion of the procedure. Our PatientSafe
syringe products currently consist of 3mL, 5mLmlQ 20mL, 30mL, 60mL PatientSafé  syringes and PadientSafe® luer cap. Th
PatientSafé syringe offers a unique patented design designgudizct patients by reducing the risk of bloodstneinfections resulting fro
catheter hub contamination.

We have additional safety product designs thattadat build upon our current product line offeringhese product designs inclu
retractable needle syringe designs, retractabldle@ksigns, glass syringe designs, retractabléleekental syringe designs, retractable ne
IV catheter designs, and retractable needle blodidation product designs. These designs areriowa stages of development.

Our products have been and continue to be distiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestangaged in by Becton, Dickinson and Company {JBithich dominates our market. \
initiated a lawsuit in 2007 against BD. The su#safor patent infringement, antitrust practices] &adse advertising. The court severed
patent claims from the other claims pending regaubf the patent dispute. The Federal Circuieduined that BDs 1mL Integra syring
violated our patents but that BD’s 3mL Integra dat infringe our patents. Oral argument on BBppeal has been set for May 9, 2014,
September 30, 2013, we received payment of $7,284i8e “Judgment Amountffom BD pursuant to a stipulation in the patentinmgemen
portion of the suit. The stipulation provides tifats a result of BD’s appeal of the District @aidenial of BD5S Rule 60(B)(5) motion, it
judicially determined that BD owes an amount ldentthe Judgment Amount, BD shall be entitled stitegion by us of any excess paym
with interest. Otherwise, the payment of the Jueligm
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Amount shall constitute satisfaction of the patefitingement judgment and BD shall owe no furthesney damages to us in the pa
infringement case. The Judgment Amount is includedcash on the balance sheet and shown as atyiaiil the balance sheet un
“Litigation proceeds subject to stipulationThe Judgment Amount is only related to the patefiingement portion of the claims against E
On September 19, 2013, a Texas jury returned aotérdthe portion of the suit regarding antitrastd other claims, finding that BD illega
engaged in anticompetitive conduct with the intenacquire or maintain monopoly power in the safgtsinge market and engaged in fi
advertising under the Lanham Act. The jury awarded$113,508,014 in damages for the antitrust glaihich is subject to being treb
pursuant to statute. A final judgment in this ratias not been entered by the Court yet. We haweeceived the $113,508,014 or any c
amounts pursuant to the verdict in the aforemeprtaantitrust litigation against BD.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the mahketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation.

Our loss per share for 2012 and 2013 were mateudilerent than 2011 predominantly because oflitigation settlements receiv
in 2011, as described herein.

On September 12, 2011, we commenced the 2011 Egeh@&ffer and also engaged in private purchases thitbe Preferre
Stockholders on the same terms and conditionsea2dhl1l Exchange Offer. As of December 31, 2014felred Stockholders had tender:
total of 1,277,464 shares of Preferred Stock. faltef $1,357,275 was paid and 1,277,464 share€a@hmon Stock were issued
consideration to these Preferred Stockholders.s@ Reeferred Stockholders agreed to waive all @ngigidends in arrears associated with 1
tendered Preferred Stock, which resulted in a waifa total of $3,592,659 in unpaid dividends irears.

On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a ComntockSepurchase plan structured to comply with Rdléb5-1 and 1068 unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The plan teaminated effective August 30, 2013. Under trenpkhe Company purchased a tot:
722,920 shares of its Common Stock, 655,818 of hiere purchased in 2013.

Section 4191 of the Internal Revenue Code, endntatie Health Care and Education Reconciliation @&c2010 in conjunction wit
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actves for an excise tax of 2.3% on medical devicAsthe present time the excise ta
applicable to domestic sales of our products, exttegse sold to exempt organizations. The majarftpur sales are domestic and not in
retail market. The tax is imposed on sales, nofifst The impact of this tax was $758,000 in 2013

Financial Information

Please see the financial statementtém 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Datéor information about our revenu
profits, and losses for the last three years atad &ssets, liabilities, and stockholder equitytfar last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of Substantial Equivaleteeéhe U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDAdihd which are currently sc
include the 1mL tuberculin; insulin; allergy antig®anishPoin® syringes; 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL VanisihP® syringes; the VanishPoifit
blood collection tube holder; the VanishPdint d&fety catheter; small diameter tube adapter; #ieft Safé® syringe; the Patient Séfe
Luer Cap; and the VanishPoifit Blood Collection. Séte are also selling VanishPoihtiutodisable syringes in the international mark
addition to our other products.

Syringe sales comprised 97.2%, 99.1%, and 98.68vefues in 2011, 2012, and 2013, respectively.

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and used by healthcarddms primarily in the U.S. (with 19.4% of revessua 2013 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not limite, acute care hospitals, alternate care

2
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facilities, doctors’offices, clinics, emergency centers, surgical asnteonvalescent hospitals, Veterans Administrafacilities, military
organizations, public health facilities, and prison

The need to change to safety devices is due taiskethat is carried with each needlestick injurfigh includes the potent
transmission of over 20 bloodborne pathogens, dhofythe human immunodeficiency virus (“HIWthich causes AIDS), hepatitis B, ¢
hepatitis C. Because of the occupational and puisialth hazards posed by conventional disposaieges, public health policy make
domestic organizations, and government agencies haen involved in the effort to get more effectbadety needle products to health
workers. Federal legislation was signed into lamwNmvember 6, 2000, by former President Willianfelsbn Clinton. This legislation, whi
became effective for most states on April 12, 20@iwy requires safety needle products be used &vdlst majority of procedures. Howe
even with this requirement, some hospitals areautiglig to follow the law intended to protect heaitte workers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain system in the UcBteacare market, the vast majority of decisionatireg to the contracting for a
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theesgmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“&P@nd purchasing representati
rather than the endsers of the product (nurses, doctors, and tegimgonnel). The GPOs and larger manufacturers eftéer into contrac
which can prohibit or limit entry in the marketpéaby competitors.

We distribute our products throughout the U.S. d@sdterritories through general line and specialtgtributors. We also u
international distributors. We have developed t#onal direct marketing network in order to marketr products to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketersencaktact with all of the departments that afféet tdecisiormaking process for safe
products, including the purchasing agents. Thélyotaacute care and alternate care sites and gfieattly with the decisiomakers of thes
facilities. We employ trained clinicians, includimurses and/or medical technologists that edueedéthcare providers and healthcare wol
on the use of safety devices throughsite-clinical training, exhibits at related tradesis, and publications of relevant articles in trggenals
and magazines. These employees provide cliniggd®ti to customers. In addition to marketing otoducts, the network demonstrates
safety and cost effectiveness of the VanishPointtoraated retraction products to customers.

In the needle and syringe market, the market sleader, BD, has utilized, among other things, @i which have restricted
entry of VanishPoin® syringes into the marketh@tproducts manufactured by us that are beingedemiarket access as a result of 8D’
anti-competitive actions include the IV safety edthis and Patient Sdfe syringes.

We have numerous agreements with organizationthédistribution of our products in foreign marketa Canada, the provinces
Alberta, Manitoba, Ontario, and Saskatchewan hassgd laws or regulations regarding healthcare evaafety and the use of safe ne
products. In Europe, the European Council adoptddective requiring the use of safe needle prtdincEU countries to prevent needles
injuries. Brazil is the only country in Latin Aniea that has initiated a regulation requiring thee wf safe needle products to pre
needlestick injuries. The Australian states of N&uth Wales, Queensland, and Victoria have gundslor directives regarding the preven
of needlestick injuries.

Key components of our strategy to increase our ateshkare are to: (a) defeat monopolistic practibesugh litigation; (b) focus ¢
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitgt afficiency in order to enable us to reduce castsimprove profit margins; (c) contir
marketing emphasis in the U.S.; (d) continue to ddtérans Administration facilities, health depagtits, emergency medical services, fec
prisons, longerm care, and home healthcare facilities as custenfe) educate healthcare providers, insureathoare workers, governmi
agencies, government officials, and the generalipuin the reduction of risk and the cost effeatiess afforded by our products; (f) sug
product through GPOs and Integrated Delivery Nekaavhere possible; (g) consider possibilities fatufe licensing agreements and |
venture agreements for the manufacture and disioibwf safety products in the U.S. and abroad;r{titpduce new products; and (i) incre
international sales.
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Status of Publicly Announced New Products

We have applied for patent protection and are énptitocess of developing additional safety medioadipcts.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product components fromlesiauppliers, including needle adhesives and pacgamaterials. There ¢
multiple sources of these materials. We own thédmthat are used to manufacture the plastic coepsnof our products in the U.S. (
current suppliers include Channel Prime AlliancglyPne Corporation, Sterigenics, and Kovacmed.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and ProprietarytRigh

We and Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder and CEO, enit@eed Technology License Agreement dated effectis of the 23rd day
June 1995 (the “Technology License Agreement”), nebg Mr. Shaw granted us “.a worldwide exclusive license and right under
‘Licensed Patents’ and ‘Information’, to manufaetumarket, sell and distribute ‘Licensed Produetsd ‘Improvementswithout right tc
sublicense and subject to such nonexclusive rightsnay be possessed by the Federal GovernmentLi¢ensed Patents’, ‘Information’
‘Licensed Products’, and ‘Improvements’e all defined extensively in the Technology Leem\greement. We may enter into sublicer
arrangements with Mr. Shaw’s written approval af terms and conditions of the licensing agreem@ite ‘Licensed Productshclude al
retractable syringes and retractable fluid samptiegices and components thereof, assembled or emasd, which comprise an invent
described in ‘Licensed Patents’, and improvememsetto including any and all ‘Productshich employ the inventive concept disclose
claimed in the ‘Licensed PatentsVe and Mr. Shaw entered into the First Amendmeriidohnology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereby
amended the Technology License Agreement in om&rdude certain additional patent applicationddf@ssing norsyringe patents) own
by Mr. Shaw to the definition of “Patent Properties set forth in the Technology License Agreemerihabsuch additional patent applicati
would be covered by the license granted by Mr. Skaws. Throughout this Annual Report on FormKLOne may refer to the Licens
Patents or Licensed Products as “our” patents odymts. Such references are not intended to dimiMr. Shaws ownership rights to tl
patents and products.

In exchange for the Technology License Agreemestnegotiated a licensing fee and agreed to pay aoy#dty on gross sales al
returns. The license terminates upon expiratiotheflast licensed patents unless sooner termingteéelr certain circumstances.

The Technology License Agreement was further ametiadeof September 7, 2012 to clarify and set firéhcalculation and amount
the royalty due to Mr. Shaw, including in the evérdt we have sublicensed our products.

We have the right and obligation to obtain protattof the inventions, including prosecution of patproperties. Mr. Shaw has
right to unilaterally change the license to a nahgsive license in the event of a hostile takeowliso, if Mr. Shaw involuntarily loses cont
of the Company, Mr. Shaw may downgrade the licéasenonexclusive license and a right to infornratio

We hold numerous patents and have applicationsipgmelated to the technology we currently markstwell as technology that is
development. These include patents and applicatibat are related to designs for retractable ggsninterchangeable needle syrin
syringes, retractable needles, retractable deptaiges, fixed dose syringes, glass syringes vathactable needles, retractable fluid collec
devices, blood draw devices with retractable nesdleid flow control device with retractable camaublood collection sets, IV catheters,
self+etracting catheter introducers. These patents kiaxying expiration dates. While there are retfale syringe patents which cover asg
of our syringe products that will expire in 2015da2016, we have additional patents and applicatiinish apply to aspects of our syrit
products with later expiration dates.

We have also registered the following trade nanmesteademarks: VanishPoifit , Patient S&fe , VarusitP logos, RT with
circle mark, the Spiral Logo used in packaging danishPoint® products, and the color coded spotherends of our VanishPoifitsyringe:
and others. We also have trademark protectiothtophrase “The New Standard for Safety.”
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We are involved in patent litigation detailedliem 3. Legal Proceedings We have decided, on the advice of patent counseltc
purchase patent insurance because it would reopaippropriate disclosure of information that isrently proprietary and confidential.

Seasonality
Historically, unit sales have increased in theslapart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.

Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted tastproceeds subject to a stipulation (discus$sewhere herein), money mai
accounts, and investments with original maturitiethree months or less.

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custont@®us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtflduof collection are included in t
allowance. This provision is reviewed to determihe adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accaurfirade receivables are chargec
when there is certainty as to their being uncalldet Trade receivables are considered delinqudr@n payment has not been made w
contract terms.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragnwith cost being determined using actual avecagé The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlgalue. Management considers such factorseaarttount of inventory on hand and in
distribution channel, estimated time to sell sunrentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremrket conditions when determining exces
obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishecifigrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriiten off.

Receivables are established for federal and séxestwhere we have determined we are entitled refusmd for overpayments
estimated taxes or loss carrybacks.

Accounts payable and other sht@tm liabilities include amounts that we believe mave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services receivedOib3 but not billed to us at the end of the yelaralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providgst a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributors facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipcd We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theywiod

Our domestic return policy also generally providlest a customer may return product that is oveksthc Overstocking returns
limited to two times in each 12 month period upl® of distributors total purchase of products for the prior 12 mopmghiod upon th
following terms: i) an “overstocked” product is thgortion of distributor’s inventory of the produshich exceeds distributar'sales volume f
the product during the preceding four months; igtributor must not have taken delivery of the pradwhich is overstocked during -
preceding four months; iii) overstocked productdhiey distributor in excess of 12 months from th&edzf original invoice will not be eligib
for return; iv) the product must have an expiratiate of at least 24 months from the date of retdyrthe overstocked product must be retu
to us in our saleable case cartons which are urapand untampered, with no broken otaped seals; vi) distributor will be granted a @
which may be used only to purchase other produets fis, the credit to be in the amount of the ioggirice of the returned product less a
restocking fee which will be assessed againstiligtr's subsequent purchase of product; vii) distribuoist obtain an authorization cc
from our distribution department and affix the cddethe returned product; and viii) distributor BHzear the cost of shipping the retur
products to us. All product overstocks and retamssubject to inspection and acceptance by us.

Our international contracts generally do not previor any returns.

5
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Dependence on Major Customers

Two customers accounted for an aggregate of 3028tirorevenue in 2013. We have numerous otheomssts and distributors tt
sell our products in the U.S. and internationally.

Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to our business inadmas orders for our products generally are receand filled on a current ba:
except for items temporarily out of stock.

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw received grants from the federamavent for his initial 1991 version of a safetyiisge, which may give the fede
government the right to allow others to manufacttivaet syringe. However, we believe the governniesd no right to allow others
manufacture the current version of the VanishPdiayringe.

Government Approval and Government Regulations

For all products manufactured for sale in the ddim@sarket we have given notice of intent to markethe FDA and the devices w
shown to be substantially equivalent to the prddicevices for the stated intended use.

For all products manufactured for sale in the fgmainarket, we hold a certificate of Quality Systeempliance with ISO 13485. \
also have approval to label products for sale Etwopean Union countries with a CE Mark. We withtinue to comply with applicak
regulations of all countries in which our produate registered for sale.

Competitive Conditions

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanadmes primarily in the U.S. (with 19.4% of revesua 2013 generated from s¢
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not limite, acute care hospitals, alternate care fagslitdoctorsbffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetehansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

We compete primarily on the basis of product penfance and quality. We believe our competitive atages include, but are |
limited to, our leadership in quality and innovati?Ve believe our products continue to be the raffsttive safety devices in todaymarket
Our syringe products include passive safety adtimatequire less disposal space, and are actiwvakdle in the patient, reducing exposur:
the contaminated needle. Our price per unit ispetitive or even lower than the competition ondelra costs incurred during the life cycle
a syringe are considered. Such life cycle costhidecdisposal costs, testing and treatment costadedlestick injuries, and treatment
contracted illnesses through needlestick injuries.

Major domestic competitors include BD and Covidigd. (“Covidien”). Terumo Medical Corp. (“Terumq”pmiths Medical, and
Braun are additional competitors with smaller masteres.

Founded in 1897, BD is headquartered in New Jer&l)'s safetyengineered device sales accounted for approxim2&§% o
BD'’s total 2013 sales. BD’s classification of dgfengineered devices include the SafetyLok™ syrimgech features a tubular plastic she
that must be manually slid over the needle aftaroreal from the patient, and the SafetyGlide™ hypode needle which utilizes a manuz
activated hinged lever to cover the needle tipraienoval from the patient. BD markets the Saféige&S™ blood collection set that ha
manually activated cover designed to extend ovendedle after use. The BD Eclipse™ safety blasiéation needle and hypodermic net
is also designed to manually cover the needle efteoval from the patient. BD manufactures thegra™ 3mL retracting needle and syri
product, as well as a spring activated VacutatheassRe Shielding Blood Collection Needle and spentivated retracting Vacutain@blooc
collection set. BD’s “Vacutainét " brand name @avumonly used as industry jargon to refer to bloolection products in general.
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Covidien offers the Monoje& safety syringe, which, like the BD SafetyLok™, regqse the use of two hands to manually exteni
tubular plastic shield to cover the needle aftanoeal from the patient. Covidien also markets Magellan™ needle, similar to BB’
SafetyGlide™ needle, which has a manually activateded lever to cover the needle tip after reménaah the patient.

Many of BD’s and Covidiers products result in exposure to the contaminagedile or allow for needle removal and potentiaingg
reuse.

In contrast, VanishPoirft syringes can be used without significant changesj@ttion technique. The automated needle reétadt
activated when the plunger handle is fully deprésseconjunction with the delivery of the completedication dose, while the needle is
in the patient. This preemoval activation virtually eliminates exposurethhe contaminated needle, reducing the risk of lesédk injuries.
Activation is easily accomplished in one step, gsime hand. Upon activation of the retraction naeim, VanishPoin® syringes ar
rendered unusable, reducing the risk of dispodateé injuries or reuse.

Our safety needle products have several advantagmsnon-retracting safety needles, including, bot limited to: preremova
activation; automated needle retraction; integratdfdty mechanism; reuse prevention; ease of nseninimal training.

BD and Covidien have controlling U.S. market shapeater financial resources; larger and more b&shedal sales, marketing, &
distribution organizations; and greater marketuiefice, including longerm and/or exclusive contracts. The current dosmB have restricte
competition in the needle and syringe market. B&yrhe able to use its resources to improve itsymisdthrough research or acquisition
develop new products, which may compete with oodpcts.

Several factors could materially and beneficialffeet the marketability of our products. Demandildobe increased by existi
legislation and other legislative and investigatdféorts. Licensing agreements could provide ety new markets and generate additi
revenue. Further, outsourcing arrangements cogleédse our manufacturing capacity with little oroapital outlay and provide a competi
cost. Litigation could also provide more accesthtomarket.

Our competitive position is weakened by the mettiad providers use for making purchasing decisamd the fact that our initi
price per unit for our safety needle products maigher than some of the less effective safetdlegaroducts that are on the market.

Research and Development

We spent $815,018; $871,851; and $837,073 in 28012, and 2013, respectively, on research and deweint. Costs in 2013 wi
primarily for compensation and related benefitengl with engineering samples and testing. Our anggoésearch and development activ
are performed by an internal research and developstaff and includes developing process improvamésr current and future automa
machines. Our limited access to the market hagesidhe introduction of products.

Possible future products include safety medicaliadsvand other needle devices to which automatedctin can be applied. \
have additional safety product designs that addrtbuild upon our current product line offeringhéBe product designs include: retract
needle syringe designs, retractable needle degitass syringe designs, retractable needle deytialge designs, retractable needle IV catt
designs, and retractable needle blood collectiauywt designs. While these product designs amaiious stages of development, we
recently focused on the design of our next gemaraif needle products which are neebidessed retractable safety products intended fonitk
devices to inject fluids, aspirate fluids, and abthlood collection. These retractable neduised products are designed to offer effe
sharps injury prevention by: being easily operatsitg one-handed activation; keeping the sskénds behind the needle at all times; hav
low manufacturing cost; and having new applicatiand uses that expand into markets in additiohdsd already addressed by VanishP®int
and Patient Safé  products, such as prefillechggs, fluid aspiration, partial injection, bloodleotion, and dental injections.

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur material costs @amrection with compliance with environmental lawd/e are considered
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bestawve generate less than 100 kilograms (220 Idshapardous waste per mon
Therefore, we are exempt from the reporting requinets set forth by the Texas Commission on Enviemtal Quality. The waste that
generated at our facility is primarily made up lafrimable liquids and paimelated waste and is sent for fuel blending by $aféeen. Thi
fuel blending process completely destroys our wastksatisfies our “cradle-to-grave” responsibility
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Other nonhazardous production waste includes qge&mpropylene regrind that is recycled. All ottremhazardous waste produce
considered municipal solid waste and sent to aagnandfill by CWD.

We also produce small amounts of regulated bioldazer waste from contaminated sharps and laboratasges. This waste is s
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees
As of March 3, 2014, we had 156 employees. 1%uoh employees were full time employees.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have minimal londived assets in foreign countries. Shipments terirational customers generally require a prepaymi¢mer b
wire transfer or an irrevocable confirmed lettercoédit. We do extend credit to international oustrs on some occasions depending
certain criteria, including, but not limited to gtleredit worthiness of the customer, the stabdityhe country, banking restrictions, and the
of the order. All transactions are in U.S. curgendf customers designate a specific destinatmmits order, we attribute sales to count
based on the destination of shipment.

2013 2012 2011

U.S. sales $ 2484320 $ 2536381 $  26,655,78
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,453,15 4,668,55! 4,736,35!
Other international sales 1,488,77 3,612,13! 710,15¢
Total sales $ 30,78512 $ 33,64450 $ 32,102,29
Long-lived asset:

u.s. $ 10,676,05 $ 11,679,599 $  12,412,50

International $ 234,11¢ % 220,05¢ $ 241 ,35:

Most international sales are filled by productioonfi Double Dove. In the event that we become wntbpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternate uf@cturer for the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mltodisable syringe, and the 5mL
10mL syringes and we would increase domestic priimtuéor the 1mL and 3mL syringes.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge on our websitevjwanishpoint.com), our Form 10-K Annual Reportidform 10Q Quarterl
reports and current reports on Form 8-K (and angratments to such reports) as soon as reasonaltycptafter such reports are filed.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
We could be subject to complex and costly reguatactivities. Our business could suffer if we air csuppliers encount
manufacturing problems. We could be subject tksriassociated with doing business outside of tt& Wurrent or worsening econol

conditions may adversely affect our business amahfiial condition.

You should carefully consider the following maténiaks facing us. If any of these risks occurt business, results of operations
financial condition could be materially affected.

We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment that is dominated By e major syringe manufacturer in the U.S. Wigiated a lawsuit in 20(
against BD. The suit was for patent infringemamitjtrust practices, and false advertising. Therceevered the patent claims from the ¢
claims pending resolution of the patent dispute. O
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September 19, 2013, a Texas jury returned a venditte portion of the suit regarding antitrust asttler claims, finding that BD illegal
engaged in anticompetitive conduct with the intenacquire or maintain monopoly power in the saftysinge market and engaged in fi
advertising under the Lanham Act. The jury awarded$113,508,014 in damages for the antitrust ¢lahich is subject to being treb
pursuant to statute. A final judgment in this reatias not been entered by the Court yet. We hawesceived the $113,508,014 or any ¢
amounts pursuant to the verdict in the aforemeprtaantitrust litigation against BD.

Although we have made limited progress in somesargach as the alternate care and some internbtiaréiets, our volumes are |
as high as they should be given the nature andtyuadl our products and the federal and state latiom requiring the use of safe nee
devices.

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain Sufficienth¢dAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

We have a history of incurring net operating lossége may experience operating losses in the futlifeve are unable to ge
sufficient market access and market share, we reaynable to continue to finance research and denedat as well as support operations
expansion of production.

We Are Dependent on Our Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technology.e e dependent on patent rights, and if the patghts are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely &ftfecPatent protection is considered, in the agges to be of material importance in
design, development, and marketing of products.

We hold numerous patents and have applicationsipgmelated to the technology we currently markstwell as technology that is
development. These include patents and applicatibat are related to designs for retractable ggsninterchangeable needle syrin
syringes, retractable needles, retractable deptaiges, fixed dose syringes, glass syringes vathactable needles, retractable fluid collec
devices, blood draw devices with retractable nesdleid flow control device with retractable camaublood collection sets, IV catheters,
self+etracting catheter introducers. These patents kiaxying expiration dates. While there are retfale syringe patents which cover asg
of our syringe products that will expire in 2015da2016, we have additional patents and applicatiinish apply to aspects of our syrit
products with later expiration dates. Patent tifay be extended, not through the original patdnisthrough related improvements. As
technology ages (and the associated patent lifeesypour competitive position in the marketplacelld weaken. The patent protection |
decrease and make us vulnerable to other comggetitibizing our technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We have been sued by BD and MDC Investment Holdiimgs for patent infringement. This case is cotiyestayed and no trial dz
is set. Patent litigation and challenges involving patents are costly and unpredictable and repyive us of market exclusivity for a pater
product or, in some cases, third party patents pnayent us from marketing and selling a produet particular geographic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdihes and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior cdimgeroducts and to changes in technology whiakicceliminate or reduce the need for
products. If a superior technology is created démand for our products could greatly diminish.

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

Our competitors have greater financial resourcgelr and more established sales and marketingligtribution organizations, a
greater market influence, including loterm contracts. These competitors may be able¢dhese resources to improve their products ti
research and acquisitions or develop new prodwdigsh may compete more effectively with our productf our competitors choose to
their resources to create products superior to, auesmay be unable to sell our products and oulityalido continue operations would
weakened.
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The Majority of Our Sales Are Filled Using One ThRarty Manufacturer

Most international syringe sales, as well as atsmigl portion of domestic sales, are filled bpguiction from Double Dove. In 't
event that we become unable to purchase such préaue Double Dove, we would need to find an alegenmanufacturer for the 0.5
insulin syringe, the 0.5mL autodisable syringe, #re@2mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes and we would inseedomestic production for the 1
and 3mL syringes. Even with increased domestidyetion, we may not be able to avoid a disruptiosupply. In 2013, the 1mL and 3
syringes made up 94.8% of our unit sales and 94086r revenues.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempilydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and the ability to mainta@vdrable third party manufacturi
arrangements and relationships could result im#esl to manufacture all of our products in the UT8is could temporarily increase unit ct
as we ramp up domestic production.

We Are Controlled by One Shareholder

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executiffieed would have investment or voting power owetotal of 51.8% of tt
outstanding Common Stock if he exercised his optias of March 3, 2014. Mr. Shaw will, thereforayé the ability to direct our operatic
and financial affairs and to substantially influertbe election of members of our Board of Directdrls interests may not always coinc
with our interests or the interests of other staitrs. This concentration of ownership, for exlemmay have the effect of delayi
deferring, or preventing a change in control, imipgda merger, consolidation, takeover, or otheriness combination involving us,
discouraging a potential acquirer from making adenoffer or otherwise attempting to obtain conwblus, which in turn could materia
adversely affect the market price of our CommonctoMr. Shaws rights under the Technology License Agreementhasowner of th
technology we produce, present similar conflictintérest.

Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colletitalwf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditrieditworthy firms, current economic conditions may afféee timing and/c
collectability of some accounts.

We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needleyxts, we face an inherent business risk of exgogsuproduct liability claims. If
product liability claim is made and damages arexoess of our product liability coverage, our cotitppe position could be weakened by
amount of money we could be required to pay to amspte those injured by our products. In the ewér recall, we do not have rec
insurance.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable and none.
Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters is located at 511 Lobo Lane, oac3&s, which we own, overlooking Lake Lewisvilfeliittle EIm, Texas. TF
headquarters are in good condition and house omninggtrative offices and manufacturing facility.hd manufacturing facility produc
approximately 26.3% of the units that were manuwfiaazt in 2013. In the event that we become unabptchase product from Double Dc
we would need to find an alternate manufacturettier0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL autodisalylérngie, and the 5mL and 10mL syrini
and we would increase domestic production for e &and 3mL syringes. The 5mL and 10mL syringessaid principally in the internatior
market. In 2013, we used approximately 29.8% ofaoumrent U.S. productive capacity for VanishPéisyringes.

A loan in the original principal amount of $4,21000is secured by our land and buildings. See Mdteour financial statements
more information.
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In the opinion of Management, the property and gaeint are suitable for their intended use and dem@ately covered by
insurance policy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On May 19, 2010final judgment was entered for us in the U.S. Dist€Court for the Eastern District of Texas, MaisHivision
which ordered that we recover $5,000,000 plus piggjeent and post-judgment interest, and orderedrageent injunction for B 1mL an
3mL Integra syringes until the expiration of camtpatents. The permanent injunction was stayethfoionger of the exhaustion of the ap
of the district cours case or twelve months from May 19, 2010. In RG1), BD filed an appeal in the U.S. Court of Aplsefor the Feder
Circuit appealing the final judgment entered on M8y 2010. In July 2011, a thrgedge panel of the U.S. Court of Appeals for theldra
Circuit reversed the district court’s judgment tB&'s 3mL Integra infringed our ‘224 patent ar@’7 patent. The U.S. Court of Appeals
the Federal Circuit affirmed the district courttglpment that the 1mL Integra infringes our ‘244 angB patents. The U.S. Court of Appt
for the Federal Circuit also affirmed the distracturt’s judgment that thed77 patent is not invalid for anticipation or ohwémess. We hi
petitioned for a rehearing by all the judges of Hexleral Circuit as to whether the thjedge panel properly construed our patent c
language in finding that the 3mL Integra did ndtiimge. Our petition for rehearing by all of thelpes of the Federal Circuit was denied
two dissents being issued. We filed a petition dertiorari asking the Supreme Court to review thatter. That petition was denied
January of 2013. On August 7, 2013, the U.S. Bis@ourt for the Eastern District of Texas isswadorder adopting the Magistrate Judge
Report and Recommendation and denying 8Rule 60 motion seeking a reduction in damageas.O€tober 29, 2013, BD filed its Notice
Appeal of the August 7, 2013 order to the Fedenau@. Oral argument for this appeal has beerfaeiay 9, 2014. On September 30, 2(
we received payment of $7,724,826 (the “Judgmenoémti’) from BD pursuant to a stipulation in this case.e Btipulation provides that if,
a result of BD’s appeal of the District Court’s ¢drof BD’s Rule 60 motion, it is judicially determined th&D owes an amount less than
Judgment Amount, BD shall be entitled to restitutloy us of any excess payment, with interest. @iise, the payment of the Judgrmr
Amount shall constitute satisfaction of the pateftingement judgment and BD shall owe no furthesmay damages to us in this case.
Judgment Amount has been reflected as a currdsilitjain the Balance Sheets since the proceedsarget realizable.

In May 2010, our and Mr. Shas/suit against BD in the U.S. District Court foetEkastern District of Texas, Marshall Divis
alleging violations of antitrust acts, false adignyg, product disparagement, tortious interfereras® unfair competition was reopened.
and Mr. Shaw filed a Second Amended Complaint dg 28, 2010 setting forth additional detail regaglithe allegations of BB’ illega
conduct. BD filed a motion to dismiss and the W&trict Court for the Eastern District of Tex&sarshall Division denied that motion in p
and granted it in part, granting us the right tglead certain allegations by May 13, 2011. We lbindShaw filed a Third Amended Comple
in May 2011, setting forth additional detail regagithe alleged illegal conduct by BD. Trial wadtially set for February 2012. However
January 2012 the parties agreed to a continuanakote the petition for certiorari to be considerefs stated above, the petition was denie
January of 2013. A hearing to re-set a trial datéight of BD’s motion for continuance was held May 3, 2013. Tf@ commenced ¢
September 9, 2013 in Tyler, Texas, and the junyrnetd its verdict on September 19, 2013, findirgg BD illegally engaged in anticompetit
conduct with the intent to acquire or maintain mowolg power in the safety syringe market and engagddlse advertising under the Lanf
Act. The jury awarded us $113,508,014 in damageghe antitrust claim, which is subject to beingbted pursuant to statute. The C
conducted a hearing for post-trial motions on Fabyr, 2014. An order has not yet issued. BDgtated that it plans to appeal the verdict.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdimgs, (“MDC”) sued us in the United States District Court for Heester
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initiallyleging that we are infringing two U.S. patents ob® (6,179,812 and 7,090,656) that
licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctive reliefdaunspecified damages. We counterclaimed foradattbns of nonnfringement
invalidity, and unenforceability of the assertedepdés. The plaintiffs subsequently dropped alliegst with regard to patent no. 7,090,656
we subsequently dropped our counterclaims for wreahbility of the asserted patents. The UnitedeStDistrict Court for the Eastern Dist
of Texas, Texarkana Division conducted a claimsstostion hearing on September 25, 2008 and is#isedaims construction order
November 14, 2008. The case has been stayed geretinlution of our first filed case against BD aésed above. As of March 27, 20
there has been no activity in this case sincettne s
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdtiity Securities.
MARKET INFORMATION
Our Common Stock has been listed on the NYSE MKTitéopredecessor entities) under the symbol “R¥Rte May 4, 2001. O

closing price on March 3, 2014, was $3.52 per sh&t@own below are the high and low sales pricesuofCommon Stock as reported by
NYSE MKT for each quarter of the last two fiscabys

2013 High Low
Fourth Quarte $3.31 $2.30
Third Quartel $4.10 $1.36
Second Quarte $1.55 $0.91
First Quarte! $1.29 $0.78

2012 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.23 $0.75
Third Quartel $1.40 $0.90
Second Quarte $1.60 $0.90
First Quartel $1.65 $1.00

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 3, 2014, there were 27,296,312 shaf€dommmon Stock held by 229 shareholders of recatdincluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.” The previous sentence exclud@s92® shares of treasury stock.

DIVIDENDS
We have not ever declared or paid any dividendthenCommon Stock. We have no current plans togogycash dividends on |
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earninggepk those required to be paid to the holders ®Rteferred Stock as resources allov

support operations and future growth. Dividends @mmmon Stock cannot be paid so long as preferreideshds are unpaid. As
December 31, 2013, there was an aggregate of $iiRidn in preferred dividends in arrears.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattarfor a chatr
describing compensation plans under which equityisées are authorized.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph compares the cumulative toglim for our Common Stock from December 31, 2@0Bécember 31, 2013, to -
total returns for the Russell Microc&p and Bec®itkinson and Company (or “BDX™g peer issuer. The graph assumes an investir

$100 in the aforementioned equities as of Decer®be2008, and that all dividends are reinvested.
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Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data is qualifiegt reference to, and should be read in conjunctigth, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statements andgel@mens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord @&esults of Operatio
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected Stateroéf@iperations data presented below for the yeraded December 31, 2010 and 20089
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 201D, 20 2009 have been derived from our auditechéiiah statements, which are
included herein.

(In thousands except for earnings per share, shamespercentages)*
As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Sales, net $ 30,78¢ $ 33,64 $ 32,10 $ 36,21¢ $ 38,98:
Cost of sales 20,47¢ 22,46¢ 21,19¢ 23,69¢ 25,46¢
Gross profit 10,31( 11,17¢ 10,90: 12,52 13,51¢
Total operating expenses 16,24: 15,11¢ 14,99: 19,18¢ 26,81:
Loss from operations (5,93)) (3,939 (4,090 (6,669 (13,29¢)
Interest incom 39 47 63 32 58
Interest expense, n (237) (237) (247) (302 (22
Litigation settlements, net — — 5,70( 9,15¢ —
Income (loss) before income taxes (6,127) (4,127 1,432 2,22% (13,26()
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 91 10 14 (17€) (3,839
Net income (loss (6,219 (4,139 1,41¢ 2,401 (9,422
Preferred Stock dividend requirements (91€) (918 (964) (1,377 (1,377
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholders ¢ (7,130 $ (5,050 $ 454 ¢ 1,03( $ (10,799
Earnings (loss) per share — basic $ (0.26) $ (0.19 % 0.0z $ 0.04 $ (0.45)
Earnings (loss) per share — diluted $ 026 $ (0.19 3 0.0z $ 0.04 $ (0.45)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 26,999,69 _ 26,219,72 _ 24,7123 _ 23,872,78 _ 23,806,53
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As of and for the Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Weighted average shares outstan— diluted 26,999,69 26,219,72 26,354,78 26,248,87. 23,806,53
Current assel $ 37,907 $ 3544. $ 35,90: $ 40,22¢ $ 39,26:
Current liabilities $ 16,62: $ 8,071 $ 6,128 $ 9,98¢ $ 13,19¢
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 10,91C $ 11,900 $ 12,65 $ 12,56. $ 14,23¢
Total asset $ 49,097 $ 47,63 $ 48,92( $ 53,19. $ 53,94:
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $ 3,577 $ 3,82¢ $ 4,14: $ 430¢ $ 4,82¢
Stockholder equity $ 28,90 $ 35,72¢ $ 38,65, $ 38,90. $ 35,92(
Redeemable Preferred Stock (in sha 994,94! 1,001,55: 1,001,55: 2,279,01i 2,285,26!
Capital lease — — — — —
Cash dividends per common sh $ — 8 — 8 — $ — $ —
Gross profit margit 33.5% 33.2% 34.(% 34.% 34.1%
* Events that could affect the treimtlicated above include continued reductions in ufecturing costs, changing average sales p

the gaining of market access, protection of ouemiat foreign currency exchange rates, the Medleaice Excise Tax, the impact of flu sea
requirements, and new products. As our produgsraade from petroleum products, the changing doetl @nd transportation may have
impact on our costs to the extent increases mayp@&oecoverable through price increases of ourymisdand reductions in oil prices may
quickly affect petroleum product prices. Salesh® Department of Health and Human Services (“DHH®mMprised 24.4% of our reveni
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, waitects comparability between 2009 and othersieReceipt of settlement proceeds
option payments from Abbott and Hospira positivetiected 2010 and 2011 results. An agreement eshchthe second quarter of 2010 \
our litigation counsel to cap certain legal fees kantributed to a lower level of expenses theeeafOur purchase in 2011 of a tota
1,277,464 shares of our Preferred Stock (whichhmse required the selling Preferred Stockholdevaive all unpaid dividends in arrears
exchange for our Common Stock and cash have redogedPreferred Stock Dividend Requirements. Theeipg of $7,724,826 from B
pursuant to litigation and subject to stipulatialis¢ussed elsewhere herein) affects both the duassets and current liabilities in 2013.
introduction of the Medical Device Excise Tax inl30will affect comparability between 2013 and pryears.

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiegficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs‘anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fomvkroking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwardlooking statements involve known and unknown riskegcertainties, and other factors that may causeaotual result
performance, or achievements to be materially dffe from any future results, performance, or adieents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amomgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our main&nce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to maimafavorable third party manufacturing and supplierangements and relationships, our at
to quickly increase capacity in response to aneiase in demand, our ability to access the marketability to maintain or lower producti
costs, our ability to continue to finance reseaanl development as well as operations and expans$iproduction, the continuing interest
larger market players, specifically BD, in provigidevices to the safety market, and other facefesenced intem 1A. Risk Factors . Giver
these uncertainties, undue reliance should notdse@ on forward-looking statements.
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Overview

We have been manufacturing and marketing our pitsdiince 1997. Safety syringes comprised 98.6%uofales in 2013. We a
manufacture and market the blood collection tubleldro |V safety catheter, and VanishPothBlood Collection Set. We currently prov
other safety medical products in addition to safetyducts utilizing retractable technology. Onetsproduct is the Patient Sdafesyringe
which is uniquely designed to reduce the risk obhlistream infections resulting from catheter hufit@mination.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelaftart of the year due, in part, to the demandsyoinges during the flu season. -
decrease in these sales for 2013 compared to 284 2ikely attributable to the timing of the releadanational flu vaccination information.

Our products have been and continue to be dis&tiboationally and internationally through numerdistributors. Although we ha
made limited progress in some areas, such as thenatle care market, our volumes are not as higiheys should be given the nature
quality of our products and the federal and staggslation requiring the use of safe needle devitbse alternate care market is compose
alternate care facilities that provide long-termsing and out-patient surgery, emergency care pagdician services.

We have reported in the past that our progressémigeld principally due to exclusive marketing piees engaged in by BD, t
dominant maker and seller of disposable syring@s.September 19, 2013, a Texas jury returned aoterdour litigation against BD, findir
that BD illegally engaged in anticompetitive contudgth the intent to acquire or maintain monopolywer in the safety syringe market |
engaged in false advertising under the Lanham Atte jury awarded us $113,508,014 in damages ®attiitrust claim, which is subject
being trebled pursuant to statute. The Court cotedlia hearing for postial motions on February 7, 2014. An order hasy®t issued. B
has stated that it plans to appeal the verdict. NAl&e not received the $113,508,014 or any othesuats pursuant to the verdict in
aforementioned antitrust litigation against BD.

The verdict in the antitrust case against BD likedytributed to our increased stock price overmeogonths.

We continue to pursue various strategies to hatterb&ccess to the hospital market, as well asrattagkets, including attempting
gain access to the market through our sales effoutsinnovative technology, introduction of nevagucts, and, when necessary, litigation.

In the event we continue to have only limited markecess and the cash provided by operations becomsefficient, we would tal
additional cost cutting measures to reduce caghinezgents. Such measures could result in the teduof units being produced, the reduc
of workforce, the reduction of salaries of officarsd other employees, and the deferral of royadfyments. We took such actions at the el
the second quarter of 2009. All employees affettedhe salary reduction had their salaries in@édsy the amount of the reduction. S
increase was effective for most employees on Augu2012 and was effective for four of our execaitdfficers on October 28, 2013.

On September 30, 2013, we received payment of 8828 (the “Judgment Amountfjom BD pursuant to a stipulation in the pa
infringement cas®etractable Technologies, Inc. and Thomas Shaw v. Becton Dickinson and Company , Civil Action No. 2:07-cv250, in th
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of e Marshall Division. The stipulation provideattif, as a result of B appeal of the Distri
Court’s denial of BD$ Rule 60(B)(5) motion, it is judicially determinésht BD owes an amount less than the Judgment AmM&D shall b
entitled to restitution by us of any excess paymeith interest. Otherwise, the payment of thegimednt Amount shall constitute satisfac
of the patent infringement judgment and BD shaleaw further money damages to us in the paterihgément case. The Judgment Am(
is included as cash on the balance sheet and shewnliability on the balance sheet under “Litigatproceeds subject to stipulationThe
Judgment Amount is only related to the patent mgfegiment portion of the claims against BD. We hdetrmined not to use the Judgn
Amount to fund operations until a final judgmenblstained on appeal.

Section 4191 of the Internal Revenue Code, endntatie Health Care and Education Reconciliation @c2010 in conjunction wit
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act pies for an excise tax of 2.3% on
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medical devices. At the present time the excigeigaapplicable to domestic sales of our produekgept those which are sold to exe
organizations. The majority of our sales are ddimeand not in the retail market. The tax is imgabson sales, not profits. There is
assurance this tax can be passed along to oumeesto The impact of this tax was $758,000 in 2013.

On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a ComntockSepurchase plan structured to comply with Rdléb5-1 and 1068 unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The plan teaminated effective August 30, 2013. Under trenpkhe Company purchased a tot:
722,920 shares of its Common Stock, 655,818 of whiere purchased in 2013.

Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Pesfees, Rights And Limitations of the Series| CBsand Series Il Class
Convertible Preferred Stock, we would be prohibifemn purchasing our Common Stock while dividendsrevin arrears. Therefore,
facilitate the Common Stock repurchase plan, we gaarterly dividends on the Series | Class B a@deS Il Class B Preferred Stock dul
the term of the repurchase plan. Notwithstandimegtérmination of the repurchase plan, the Boar@ifctors have authorized dividends tc
paid to the Series | Class B and Series Il ClaBsdBerred Stockholders in successive quartersid®mds were paid on November 11, 2013
January 20, 2014, each in the cumulative amou68f613. These dividends may be suspended atraayby the Board of Directors.

Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese ratwukr, have enabled us to increase manufactagpgcity with little capit:
outlay and have provided a competitive manufactugost. In 2013, Double Dove manufactured appratéty 72.9% of the units v
produced. In the event that we become unable tchpse product from Double Dove, we would neednd &n alternate manufacturer for
0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL autodisable syeingnd the 5mL and 10mL syringes, and we woulceese domestic production for the 1
and 3mL syringes.

In 1995, we entered into a license agreement witbnfas J. Shaw for the exclusive right to manufactunarket, and distribt
products utilizing automated retraction technologphis technology is the subject of various patesmsl patent applications owned
Mr. Shaw. The license agreement generally providegquarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on grsales.

Our loss per share for 2013 and 2012 were materdifferent than in 2011 predominantly because wfds received in 2011
connection with a settlement agreement pursuanthioh we received quarterly option payments tota8 million from Hospira for a one-
year option to negotiate a licensing agreementdotain uses of the Patient S® syringe. This option expired unexercised in R0y1.

With increased volumes, our manufacturing unit €dstve generally tended to decline. Factors thaldcaffect our unit costs inclu
increases in costs by third party manufactureranging production volumes, costs of petroleum petgluand transportation costs. Increas
such costs may not be recoverable through pricqeases of our products.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risks
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldediimaterially from our historical results of opgoas and those discussed in the forwarc
looking statements. All period references areuofscal years ended December 2013, 2012, or 2@dllar amounts have been roundec
ease of reading.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2013 and Year Ended December 31, 2012

Domestic sales accounted for 80.7% and 75.4% ofdhenues in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Domestienues decreased 2.
principally due to lower average sales prices ameel volumes. Domestic unit sales decreased 0B&tnestic unit sales were 71.8% of t
unit sales for 2013. International revenues deagdrom $8.3 million in 2012 to $5.9 million in 2B, primarily due to lower sales volum:
Overall unit sales decreased
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11.5%. Our international orders may be subjecsitgmificant fluctuation over time. Such orders nfhyctuate due to health initiatives
various times, as well as economic conditions.

Cost of sales decreased $2.0 million due to fewdsisold, mitigated by an increase in our inveptmrserve. Royalty expen:
decreased $217 thousand due to lower gross saless profit margins increased from 33.2% in 2@123.5% in 2013.

Operating expenses increased 7.4% from the priar gee to the effect of the Medical Device Excis,Trestoration of a previo
companywide wage cut, and additional sales personnel.intfeased our reserve for valuation of inventory$bg0,000 primarily due to t
likelihood that we will not use certain raw matésia production. Our legal costs increased in®0e to increased patent expense mitig
by lower litigation costs.

Loss from operations was $5.9 million in 2013 corepiao an operating loss of $3.9 million in 2012.

Cash flow from operations was $2.9 million for 208 primarily to litigation proceeds subject tstgulation (discussed elsewh
herein).

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2012 and Year Ended December 31, 2011

Domestic sales accounted for 75.4% and 83.0% ofdhenues in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Domestienues decreased 4.
principally due to a decrease in unit sales analeet average price. Domestic unit sales decre2d@#d. Domestic unit sales were 64.09
total unit sales for 2012. International revenineseased from $5.4 million in 2011 to $8.3 million2012, primarily due to higher volun
mitigated by lower average prices. Overall unlesancreased 14.7%. Our international orders beagubject to significant fluctuation o
time. Such orders may fluctuate due to healtlisitives at various times, as well as economic da.

Cost of sales increased $2.7 million due to gresades volumes mitigated by a decrease of $1.5omitlue to lower unit costs
manufacture. Royalty expenses increased $49 thduhze to higher gross sales. Gross profit marmdgtseased from 34.0% in 2011 to 33
in 2012.

Operating expenses increased 0.8% from the priar gee to higher compensation in our Sales and etiagkdepartment attributal
to increasing sales and marketing staff and boaysag well as increased travel and entertainmererese. Our litigation costs were highe
2012. These increases in costs were reduced ®r loests of patents and bad debt expense.

Loss from operations was $3.9 million in 2012 corepiao an operating loss of $4.1 million in 2011.

In 2011, “Litigation settlements, net” reflectedshgproceeds of $6.0 million net of a $300 thousaydlty payment.

Cash flow from operations was $158 thousand fo22de primarily to decreases in current assetsramrdases in current liabilitie
The effect of the net loss was mitigated by norredsarges, principally depreciation.

LIQUIDITY

At the present time, Management does not intendite equity capital. Due to the funds receivednfiprior litigation settlements, \
have sufficient cash reserves and intend to relgpmrations, cash reserves, and debt financinigeagrtimary ongoing sources of cash.

Our note to Katie Petroleum was paid in full in ®epber 2012. Our payments were approximately $87p&r month. The notes
the original principal amounts of $327,726 and $26@ payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. will ged in full in April 2014 an
November 2014, respective
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Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarilgrfr the proceeds from revenues, private placemétigmtion settlements, al
loans.

Internal Sources of Liquidity
Margins and Market Access

To routinely achieve break even quarters, we neitnmal access to hospital markets which has beéfitut to obtain. We wil
continue to attempt to gain access to the markeutih our sales efforts, innovative technology, ittteoduction of new products, and, wl
necessary, litigation.

We continue to focus on methods of upgrading ounufecturing capability and efficiency in order duce costs.

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of raw tevéals and inventory and our ability to maintaiavérable manufacturii
arrangements and relationships could result inntbed to manufacture all (as opposed to 26.3%) ofpooducts in the U.S. This col
temporarily increase unit costs as we ramp up dooeoduction.

The mix of domestic and international sales afftfitsaverage sales price of our products. Gengethl higher the ratio of domes
sales to international sales, the higher the aeesmdes price will be. Typically international esalare shipped directly from China to
customer. Purchases of product manufactured in&Chii available, usually decrease the average afostanufacture for all units. Domes
costs, such as indirect labor and overhead, remetatively constant. The number of units produbgdis versus manufactured in China
have a significant effect on the carrying costiwéntory as well as Cost of sales. We will conéirio evaluate the appropriate mix of prod
manufactured domestically and those manufacturedhima to achieve economic benefits as well as amtain our domestic manufactur
capability.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our produate petroleum based) and transportation and themeoof units purchased frc
Double Dove may have an impact on the unit costauofproduct. Increases in such costs may noébaverable through price increases ol
products. Reductions in oil prices may not quickifect petroleum product prices.
Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelagtart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.
Cash Requirements

Due to funds received from prior litigation settlems, we have sufficient cash reserves and intemely on operations, cash reser
and debt financing as the primary ongoing souréessh. In the event we continue to have onlytéehimarket access and cash generated
operations becomes insufficient to support openatiave would take additional cost cutting measuoceseduce cash requirements. S
measures could result in the reduction of unitsidpgiroduced, the reduction of workforce, the reiducof salaries of officers and otl
employees, and the deferral of royalty payments.

External Sources of Liquidity

We have obtained several loans from our inceptidnich have, together with the proceeds from thessaF equities and litigatis
efforts, enabled us to pursue development and ptimdu of our products. Given the current economanditions, our ability to obta
additional funds through loans is uncertain. Femtiore, the shareholders previously authorizeddalitianal 5,000,000 shares of a Clas
Preferred Stock that could, if necessary, be dassgghand used to raise funds through the saleuwfyegDue to the current market price of
Common Stock, it is unlikely we would choose tseafunds by the sale of equity.
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In 2010 and 2011, in connection with a settlemgmeament, the Company received quarterly optiomyamys, totaling $8 millio
from Hospira, Inc. for a one-year option to nedetia licensing agreement for certain uses of thefaSafe® syringe. This option expir
unexercised in July 2011.

On July 10, 2012, Thomas J. Shaw, our Chief Exeeu@fficer, exercised a portion of his stock optiofihe Company issu
2,000,000 shares of Common Stock to him at an e&eerngrice of $0.81 (aggregate consideration of ZL®00). In 2013, we receiv
consideration of $536,925 from various other empésyexercising stock options.

On September 30, 2013, we received payment of /828 from BD pursuant to a stipulation (discusetstwhere herein) in t
patent infringement cadeetractable Technologies, Inc. and Thomas Shaw v. Becton Dickinson and Company , Civil Action No. 2:07-cv250
in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern DistridtTexas, Marshall Division. Such amount is imt#d as cash on the balance sheet and ¢
as a liability on the balance sheet under “Litigatproceeds subject to stipulation”.

On September 19, 2013, a Texas jury returned aiotemd our litigation against BD, finding that BDldgally engaged i
anticompetitive conduct with the intent to acquaremaintain monopoly power in the safety syringekatiand engaged in false adverti
under the Lanham Act. The jury awarded us $113(B@Bin damages for the antitrust claim, whichubject to being trebled pursuani
statute. The Court conducted a hearing for p@stmotions on February 7, 2014. An order hasyw issued. BD has stated that it plar
appeal the verdict. We have not received the $DB3014 or any other amounts pursuant to the vieirdibe aforementioned antitrust litigat
against BD.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Repurchase of Common Stock

On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a ComntockSepurchase plan structured to comply with Rdleb5-1 and 1068 unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The plan igawinated effective August 30, 2013. Under thenpkhe Company purchased a tot:
722,920 shares of its Common Stock, 655,818 of hvhiere purchased in 2013 at a total cost in 201®a#,407.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

None.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following chart summarizes our material obligas and commitments to make future payments ucalgracts for longerm dek
as of December 31, 2013:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More
Than 1-3 35 Than 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt $ 3,823,991 $ 247,06: $ 308,92t $ 349,07¢ $ 2,918,922
Operating leases 122,77 62,81: 59,96¢ — —
Total $ 3,946,77' $ 309,87 $ 368,89: $ 349,07¢ $ 2,918,92!
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most signifitaracounting policies. Careful consideration aediew is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuxettiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custont@®us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtflduof collection are included in t
allowance. This provision is reviewed to determihe adequacy of the allowance for doubtful acceurftrade receivables are chargec
when there is certainty as to their being uncalkdet Trade receivables are considered delinqudmn payment has not been made w
contract terms.

We require certain distributors to make a prepaytrpeor to beginning production or shipment of theider. Distributors may apy
such prepayments to their outstanding invoicesagrtphe invoice and continue to carryforward theasétpfor future orders. Such amounts
included in Other accrued liabilities on the Baku&heets and are shown in Note 6, Other Accrudiilities.

We record an allowance for estimated returns asdaation to accounts receivable and gross saléstorid¢ally, returns have be
immaterial.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and eiskwnership passes to the customer, generally ighipment. Under cert:
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of galee to distributors, less contractual priciligwaances. Contractual pricing allowan
consist of (i) rebates granted to distributors wirovide tracking reports which show, among othengs, the facility that purchased
products, and (ii) a provision for estimated coctinal pricing allowances for products that we hawéreceived tracking reports. Rebates
recorded when issued and are applied against tsteroers receivable balance. Distributors receive a eelfat the difference between
Wholesale Acquisition Cost and the appropriate rmamtprice as reflected on a tracking report predidby the distributor to us. If produc
sold by a distributor to an entity that has no cactt there is a standard rebate (lower than aacted rebate) given to the distributor. On
the purposes of the rebate is to encourage disribdo submit tracking reports to us. The provisfor contractual pricing allowances
reviewed at the end of each quarter and adjustedhanges in levels of products for which theredstracking report. Additionally, if
becomes clear that tracking reports will not bevjated by individual distributors, the provisionfisgrther adjusted. The estimated contrac
allowance is included in Accounts payable in thdaBee Sheets and deducted from revenues in thenStats of Operations. Accou
payable included estimated contractual allowance$3,611,692 and $3,036,564 for 2013 and 201pectively. The terms and condition:
contractual pricing allowances are governed by remté between us and our distributors. Revenuesliggments directly to endsers i
recognized when title and risk of ownership pass®a us. Any product shipped or distributed foakesation purposes is expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whiely thre not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepfaducts not purchased directly fr
us. Major customers said they have ceased thdigeaaesulting in claiming nooentractual rebates. Rebates can only be claimm
purchases made directly from us. We have establiaheserve for the collectability of these rammtractual rebate amounts. The expens
the reserve is recorded in Operating expense, @eand administrative. The reserve for such contractual deductions is included in
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providgst a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributors facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipce We will not accept returned goods withoue@mrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theymiod
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Our domestic return policy also generally providest a customer may return product that is ovekstbc Overstocking returns
limited to two times in each 12 month period upl®b of distributors total purchase of products for the prior 12 magudhiod. All produc
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidraaneptance by us.

Our international distribution agreements generddélynot provide for any returns.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost being determined using actual averamgt. We compare the aver
cost to the market price and record the lower valianagement considers such factors as the anafuimventory on hand and in t
distribution channel, estimated time to sell sunrentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremarket conditions when determining exces
obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishedifigrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayrhiten off.

Recent Pronouncement

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaoissued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) Ril3411, Income Taxe
(Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tardlie When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a iBimTax Loss, or a Tax Cre
Carryforward Exists (“ASU 2013-11"). ASU 20113 requires, unless certain conditions exists, raeaognized tax benefit, or a portion o
unrecognized tax benefit, to be presented in th@nftial statements as a reduction to a deferredgset for a net operating loss carryforn
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. WA801341 is effective prospectively for reporting peridzbginning after December 15, 2C
with early adoption permitted. Retrospective aggilon is also permitted. The adoption of ASU 2013 effective with the reporting peri
beginning January 1, 2014, is not expected to havienpact on our financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

We believe that our market risk exposures regardimgcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adongot have instruments
trading purposes. Additionally, reasonable, pdegilear-term changes in market rates or pricesnsillresult in material changes in neam
earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeRewéctable Technologies, Inc. as of December 8132and 2012, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockhole@epsity, and cash flows for each of the three y@atbe period ended December 31, 2(
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listettém 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsildfithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspamon on these financ
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to havewere we engaged to perform an audit of itsrival control over financial reportin
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigradit procedures that are appropriate il
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsaiyternal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aumtudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements, assessing the accountingiplasused and significant estimates made by managementell as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe dhataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respectse financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 281 the results of its operations and its cashidlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.Snegelly accepted accounting principles. Also, ir @pinion, the related financ
statement schedule, when considered in relatidhddasic financial statements taken as a whoksepts fairly in all material respects
information set forth therein.

/s CF & Co., L.L.P
CF &Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 201«
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $1,698,506 and $2,186,190, respeci
Inventories, ne
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Total current asse

Property, plant, and equipment,
Intangible and other assets,
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Litigation proceeds subject to stipulati

Current portion of lon-term debi

Accrued compensatic

Dividends payabl

Accrued royalties to shareholde

Other accrued liabilitie

Income taxes payab

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci- See Note ¢

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she
Series |, Class B; outstanding: 103,500 sharesidation preference of $646,87
Series Il, Class B; outstanding 178,700 sharesi@laiion preference of $2,233,7¢
Series Ill, Class B; outstanding: 130,245 shaigsiflation preference of $1,628,0¢
Series IV, Class B; outstanding: 542,500 shargsi¢lation preference of $5,967,5(
Series V, Class B; outstanding: 40,000 and 46,6@ves, respectively (liquidation preference of $0@6 and $205,07
respectively’
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,000sb@0es; outstanding: 27,187,702 and 27,252,468sh@spectivel
Additional paic-in capital
Retained defici
Common stock in treasu- at cost; 722,920 and 67,102 shares, respec!
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde' equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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December 31

2013 2012
$ 27,629,35 $ 25,963,31
3,476,7L1 3,694,30
5,735,58! 4,990,25:
— 9,431
1,065,64 783,76(
37,907,30 35,441,06
10,910,17 11,899,65
279,96! 291,44
$ 49,097,44 $ 47,632,15
$ 5,107,77.  $ 5,099,88
7,724,82 —
247,06 315,08t
815,04« 809,59:
57,61¢ 57,61¢
602,20¢ 129,10°
1,975,01 1,665,67
90,97 —
16,620,52 8,076,95.
3,576,93. 3,826,211
20,197,45 11,903,16
103,50( 103,50(
178,70( 178,70(
130,24! 130,24!
542,50( 542,50(
40,00( 46,60’
58,983,16 58,617,30
(29,981,51) (23,767,66)
(1,096,601 (122,207
28,899,98 35,728,99
$ 49,097,44 $ 47,632,15
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Sales, net $ 30,78512 $ 33,64450 $ 32,102,29
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt 18,000,40 19,776,19 18,556,25
Royalty expense to shareholders 2,474,76, 2,691,88 2,643,20!
Total cost of sales 20,475,17 22,468,08 21,199,46
Gross profit 10,309,95 11,176,41 10,902,83
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 4,414,33! 4,220,80! 3,439,53!
Research and developme 837,07: 871,85: 815,01¢
General and administrative 10,989,79 10,022,62 10,738,11
Total operating expenses 16,241,20 15,115,28 14,992,66
Loss from operations (5,931,24) (3,938,86) (4,089,83)
Interest and other incon 38,941 46,99¢ 62,59¢
Interest expense, n (230,579 (231,219) (240,489
Litigation settlements, net — — 5,700,00!
Income (loss) before income taxes (6,122,881 (4,123,079 1,432,27!
Provision for income taxes 90,97: 9,81¢ 13,79;
Net income (loss) (6,213,85) (4,132,89) 1,418,48:
Preferred Stock dividend requirements (916,06 (918,109 (964,04)
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholders $ (7,129,91) $ (5,051,000 $ 454,43!
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.2¢) $ (0.19 $ 0.0z
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.2¢) $ (0.19 $ 0.0Z
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 26,999,69 26,219,722 24,171,23
Diluted 26,999,69 26,219,722 26,354,78

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Series | Class E Series 1l Class B Series 1l Class B Series 1V Class B Series V Class E Common
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance as of December 31, 2( 144,000 $144,000 219,70( $219,70( 130,24! $130,24! 552,50( $552,50( 1,232,57 $1,232,57. 23,974,111 $ —

Exchange of Preferred Stock for
Common Stocl (40,50() (40,50() (41,000 (41,000 — — (10,000 (10,000 (1,185,96) (1,185,96) 1,277,46. —

Purchase of Preferred Stc - — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _

Recognition of stock option
exercise — — — — — — — — — — 67,12: —

Dividends —_ — — — — — — — . — _ _

Net income — — — — — — — . — _ _ _

Balance as of December 31, 2( 103,50¢ 103,50 178,70 178,70  130,24! 130,24' 542,500 542,50( 46,607 46,607 25,318,70 —

Recognition of stock optio
exercise — — — — — — — — — — 2,000,86! —

Dividends — - — — — — — _ — _ _ _
Repurchase of Common Stc — — — — — — — — — — (67,109 —

Net loss —_ — — — — — — — . — _ _

Balance as of December 31, 2( 103,50t 103,50 178,70 178,70  130,24! 130,24' 542,500 542,50( 46,607 46,607 27,252,46 —

Conversion of Preferred Stock
into Common Stoc — — — — — — — — (6,607%) (6,60%) 6,607 —

Recognition of stock optio
compensatiol — — — — — — — — — — _ _

Recognition of stock option
exercise — — — — — — — — — — 584,45( —

Dividends — — — — — — — — — — _ —
Repurchase of Common Stc — — — — — — — — — —  (655,81)) —

Net loss —_ — — — — — — — . — _ _

Balance as of December 31, 2 103,50( $103,50(  178,70( $178,70(  130,24! $130,24! 542,500 $542,50( 40,00 $ 40,00 27,187,70 $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as of December 31, 2010
Exchange of Preferred Stock for Common St
Purchase of Preferred Stc

Recognition of stock option exerci

Dividends

Net income

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Recognition of stock option exerci

Dividends

Repurchase of Common Sta

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St
Recognition of stock option compensat
Recognition of stock option exerci

Dividends

Repurchase of Common Sta

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2013

Additional
Paid-in Retained Treasury
Capital Deficit Stock Total

$ 57,674,73 $ (21,053,25) $ — 3 38,900,50
1,277,46. — — —
(1,357,27) — — (1,357,27)
54,36¢ — — 54,36¢
(364,62Y — — (364,62))

— 1,418,48 — 1,418,48

57,284,67 (19,634,77) — 38,651,45
1,620,70: — — 1,620,70.
(288,06)) — — (288,06
— — (122,20)) (122,20))
— (4,132,89) — (4,132,89)

58,617,30 (23,767,66) (122,20)) 35,728,99
6,607 — — —

52,77* — — 52,77*
536,92! — — 536,92!
(230,449 — — (230,449
— — (974,40 (974,40
— (6,213,85) — (6,213,85)

$ 58,983,16 $ (29,981,51) $ (1,096,60) ¢  28,899,98

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss $ (6,213,85) $ (4,132,89) $ 1,418,48:
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used by)

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,284,24 1,335,85! 1,311,741
Share based compensat 52,77¢ — —
Provision for doubtful accoun 50,00( 107,24t 1,298,04.
Provision for inventory valuatio 530,00( 120,00( 52,83¢
Gain on disposal of ass¢ (1,000 —
Accreted interes — 3,778 17,61(
(Increase) decrease in ass
Inventories (1,275,33i) 1,127,16! 2,391,93
Accounts receivabl 167,58¢ (66,867 1,305,37!
Income taxes receivab 9,431 30,05¢ (27,459
Other current asse (281,88) (565,23) 462,71!
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl 7,89¢ 1,441,30: 1,054,56:
Litigation proceeds subject to stipulati 7,724,821 — —
Other accrued liabilitie 787,90: 787,39: (3,646,55)
Income taxes payab 90,97 (29,47 (125,529
Net cash provided by operating activit 2,933,56! 158,33 5,513,77.
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equipn (283,289 (510,11) (826,09)
Proceeds from sale of ass 1,00( — —
Net cash used by investing activit (282,289 (510,11) (826,09))
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal (317,309 (626,219 (612,927
Repurchase of Preferred Stc — — (1,357,27)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti 536,92! 1,620,70. 54,36¢
Repurchase of Common Stc (974,40) (122,20)) —
Payment of Preferred Stock divider (230,449 (230,45() (364,629
Net cash provided (used) by financing activi (985,239 641,83( (2,280,45)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 1,666,041 290,05( 2,407,22.
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of perioc 25,963,31 25,673,26 23,266,03
End of perioc $ 2762935 $ 2596331 $ 2567326
Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic $ 241,05; $ 264,03. $ 279,69:
Income taxes pai $ 7,98¢ % 347¢ % 188,75«
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities
Preferred dividends declared, not p $ 57,61! $ 57,61 $ —
Debt assumed for the purchase of molding mact $ — $ $ 534,98t

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Compamyds incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and dssidevelops, manufactures,
markets safety syringes and other safety medicaymts for the healthcare profession. The Compbegan to develop

manufacturing operations in 1995. The Companyanufacturing and administrative facilities aveated in Little EIm, Texas. T
Company’s primary products with Notice of SubstainfEquivalence to the FDA are the VanishP&in0.5mL insulin syringe; 1m
tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen syringtee 0.5mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes; the smahtkter tube adapter; the bl
collection tube holder; the allergy tray; the IVfetg catheter; the Patient Safe  syringe; the Rat@afe® Luer Cap; and tt
VanishPoin® Blood Collection Set.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl(“GAAP”) require:
Management to make estimates and assumptions fteat the reported amounts of assets and liaksliied disclosure of conting
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstatements and the reported amounts of revenwksxpenses during the repori
period. Actual results could differ significanfipm those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include unrestricted cash, the pracsabject to a stipulation (discus
elsewhere herein), money market accounts, andtimeggs with original maturities of three monthdess.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revantecognized. No product has been consigned stomers. The Compary’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detéred by review of specific trade receivables. TEhascounts that are doubtful
collection are included in the allowance. Thisyismn is reviewed to determine the adequacy ofalt@vance for doubtful account
Trade receivables are charged off when there igioty as to their being uncollectible. Trade reables are considered delinqu
when payment has not been made within contractsterm

The Company requires certain customers to makegagment prior to beginning production or shipnedrtheir order. Customers
apply such prepayments to their outstanding inoarepay the invoice and continue to carry forwtdue deposit for future orders. Si
amounts are included in Other accrued liabilitirglee Balance Sheets and are shown in Note 6, @dtwrued Liabilities.

The Company records an allowance for estimatednetas a reduction to Accounts receivable and Gsakss. Historically, retur
have been immaterial.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriith cost being determined using actual averagt. The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlgalue. Management considers such factorseaarttount of inventory on hand ¢
in the distribution channel, estimated time to selth inventory, the shelf life of inventory, andrrent market conditions wh
determining excess or
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obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishedifigrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriiten off.
Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at d&spenditures for maintenance and repairs are eldat@ operations as incurred. (
includes major expenditures for improvements arglascements which extend useful lives or increaggac#y and interest cc
associated with significant capital additions. Hwr years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 84 Company capitalized inter
of approximately $10,474; $36,596; and $57,000inSar losses from property disposals are includeédcome.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated uliegstraight-line method over the following usdiués:

Production equipmet 3 to 13 year:
Office furniture and equipmel 3 to 10 year:
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of liegh assets using an assessment of the estimatksicounted future cash flows rele
to such assets. In the event that assets are foulne carried at amounts which are in excess todhated gross future cash flows,
assets will be adjusted for impairment to a lewwhmensurate with fair value determined using aadisted cash flow analysis of !
underlying assets.

The Companys property, plant, and equipment primarily consfabuildings, land, assembly equipment for syringeslding machine
molds, office equipment, furniture, and fixtures.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and congistuilly of intellectual property which is amortizeding the straighline method over 1
years.

Financial instruments

The Company estimates the fair market value ofnfire instruments through the use of public manétes, quotes from financ
institutions, and other available information. dont is required in interpreting data to develspineates of market value a
accordingly, amounts are not necessarily indicatehe amounts that could be realized in a curreatket exchange. Shdgrmr
financial instruments, including cash and casheants, accounts receivable, accounts payableptiet liabilities, consist primari
of instruments without extended maturities, the value of which, based on Managemsrgstimates, equals their recorded values.
fair value of long-term liabilities, based on Mapatgent's estimates, approximates their reportedegalu

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidnsredit risk consist primarily of cash, cash e@lénts, and accoul
receivable. Cash balances, some of which excekntdly insured limits, are maintained in finandiadtitutions; however, Managem
believes the institutions are of high credit qualitThe majority of accounts receivable are duanfroompanies which are well-
established entities. As a consequence, Managesoasiders any exposure from concentrations ofitcriséts to be limited.
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The following table reflects our significant custers in 2013, 2012, and 2011

Years Ended December ¢

2013 2012 2011
Number of significant custome 2 3 4
Aggregate dollar amount of net sales to significargtomer: $9.3 millior $13.7 millior $16.2 millior
Percentage of net sales to significant custor 30.2% 40.6% 50.6%

Considering the current economic climate, the Campacreased its allowance for doubtful accountsapproximately $50,000 tt
year.

The Company manufactures syringes in Little ElnxalBeas well as utilizing manufacturers in Chindae Tompany purchases mos
its product components from single suppliers, iditlg needle adhesives and packaging materialsreTdre multiple sources of thi
materials. The Company obtained roughly 72.9%sofimished products in 2013 from Double Dove, an€ke manufacturer. Purche
from Double Dove aggregated 72.0% and 67.1% oslied products in 2012 and 2011, respectively.héndvent that the Compe
becomes unable to purchase such product from Dddine, the Company would need to find an altermadéaufacturer for its 0.5n
insulin syringe, its 2mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringesddaits autodisable syringe and increase domestidymtimn for 1mL and 3m
syringes.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and oislownership passes to the customer, generallyh igtipment. Under cert:
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of galiee to distributors, less contractual pricirlpv@ances. Contractual prici
allowances consist of: (i) rebates granted to iistors who provide tracking reports which show,oagn other things, the facility tr
purchased the products, and (ii) a provision foimested contractual pricing allowances for produbest the Company has not recei
tracking reports. Rebates are recorded when isanddare applied against the customegceivable balance. Distributors recer
rebate for the difference between the Wholesaleusitipn Cost and the appropriate contract priceedlected on a tracking rep
provided by the distributor to the Company. If protis sold by a distributor to an entity that mascontract, there is a standard re
(lower than a contracted rebate) given to the ibistor. One of the purposes of the rebate is tmerage distributors to submit track
reports to the Company. The provision for contrakpricing allowances is reviewed at the end oheguarter and adjusted for char
in levels of products for which there is no tragkieport. Additionally, if it becomes clear theadking reports will not be provided
individual distributors, the provision is furthedjasted. The estimated contractual allowance étuded in Accounts payable ¢
deducted from revenues in the Statements of OpesatiAccounts payable included estimated contahetiowances for $3,611,692 ¢
$3,036,564 for 2013 and 2012, respectively. Thengeand conditions of contractual pricing allows@ee governed by contra
between the Company and its distributors. Revdaushipments directly to endsers is recognized when title and risk of owng
pass from the Company. Any product shipped oriligied for evaluation purposes is expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whigy thre not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepi@mducts not purchased directly fr
the Company. Major customers said they have cetlmegdractices resulting in claiming noontractual rebates. Rebates can on
claimed on purchases made directly from the Compahg Company has established a reserve for tHectalbility of these non-
contractual rebate amounts. The expense for gerve is recorded in Operating expense, Generabdmdnistrative. The reserve
such noneontractual deductions is included in the allowafozedoubtful accounts. There has been no chamgleet reserve contracti
rebates in the periods currently presented.

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its stamdBistribution Agreement. This policy providesatia customer mi
return incorrect shipments within 10 days followiagival at the distributos facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain al
authorization code from the Company and affix the
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code to the returned product. The Company will actept returned goods without a returned goodsoaaation number. Tt
Company may refund the customer’s money or reglaeg@roduct.

The Companys domestic return policy also provides that a qustomay return product that is overstocked. Owekshg returns al
limited to two times in each 12-month period upléh of distributor’'s total purchase of products foe prior 12month period. A
product overstocks and returns are subject to oigpgeand acceptance by the Company.

The Company’s international distribution agreemeiatsiot provide for any returns.
Litigation proceeds and settlements

Proceeds from litigation are recognized when rable. Generally, realization is not reasonablyiass and expected until proceeds
collected; however, see Note 8, COMMITMENTS AND CUNGENCIES, for a discussion of proceeds receivezmf Bectol
Dickinson and Company (“BD”) pursuant to a stipidatin the patent infringement cadRetractable Technologies, Inc. and Thomas
Shaw v. Becton Dickinson and Company , Civil Action No. 2:07-cv250, in the U.S. District Court for the Easterntbi$ of Texas
Marshall Division.

Pursuant to a settlement agreement among the Cgmpdtott, and Hospira, Inc. (“Hospira”}jospira delivered $6 million to t
Company in the third quarter of 2010. The Compesguced its litigation settlements by $144,000ilaitable to an unpaid Abb:
invoice. Abbott also waived its rights to any 8eriV Class B Preferred Stock dividends. Additlynahe Company granted Hospira
exclusive one-year option to negotiate a licensiggeement for certain uses of the Patient Safgyringe, which option expirt
unexercised in July 2011. The Company has receilied$8.0 million option payments. The Companyogeizes proceeds frc
litigation settlements, net of any associated yyapense.

Income taxes

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or egpeitt be taken in a tax return for recognitionha financial statements basec
whether it is “more-likely-than-notthat a tax position will be sustained based upent¢ichnical merits of the position. Measureme
the tax position is based upon the largest amadiupeioefit that is greater than 50% likely of beneglized upon ultimate settlement.

The Company provides for deferred income taxesutiinautilizing an asset and liability approach fimahcial accounting and report
based on the tax effects of differences betweerfitfancial statement and tax bases of assets abdities, based on enacted r:
expected to be in effect when such differencesrsevin future periods. Deferred tax assets ardlieally reviewed for realizability
The Company utilized some of its net operating kasy forwards in 2011 and 2013 and paid Altereailinimum Tax on its taxak
income. The Company has established a valuatlowathce for its net deferred tax asset as futurali®@ income cannot be reasoni
assured. Penalties and interest related to inctareare classified as General and administrativeeese and Interest exper
respectively, in the Statements of Operations.

Earnings per share

The Company computes basic earnings per share (JERSJividing net earnings for the period (adjusteddny cumulative dividen
for the period) by the weighted average numbemofimon shares outstanding during the period. Odl&ES includes the determine
of basic EPS and, in addition, reflects the dilateffect, if any, of the common stock deliverablespant to stock options or comn
stock issuable upon the conversion of convertiblefgored stock and convertible debt. The calcofatdf diluted EPS exclud
1,305,847 and 1,373,345 shares of Common Stockriyimte issued and outstanding stock options at Dessr 31, 2013 and 20:
respectively, as their effect was antidilutive. eTgotential dilution, if any, is shown on the follmg schedule:
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Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Net income (loss (6,213,85) % (4,132,89) % 1,418,48
Preferred dividend requiremer (916,06 (918,109 (964,04
Effect of dilutive securities
Convertible debt interest and loan fees — — (10,120
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholdées assumed

conversions (7,129,91) ¢ (5,051,000 % 444 31!
Average common shares outstanding 26,999,69 26,219,72 24.171,23
Dilutive stock equivalents from stock optic — — 2,101,82!
Shares issuable upon conversion of convertible debt — — 81,72:
Average common and common equivalent shares odistan

assuming dilutior 26,999,69 26,219,72 26,354,78
Basic earnings (loss) per share (0.26) % (0.19¢% 0.0z
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (0.20) ¢ (0.19¢ 0.02

Shipping and handling costs
The Company classifies shipping and handling castgart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gipes
Research and development costs
Research and development costs are expensed a®ihcu
Share-based compensation
The Company'’s share-based payments are accountedifg the fair value method. The Company receiggebased compensati
expense on a straiglite basis over the requisite service period. Twenpany incurred $52,775 in General and adminiggatos
related to share-based compensation in 2013. IN& departments or years incurred share-based cmaen costs.
All stock options are fully vested; therefore, stthck option expense has been fully recognized.
Recent Pronouncement
In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsaffoissued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) Ril3411, Income Taxe
(Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tame®ie When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, aiiinTax Loss, or a Tax Cre:
Carryforward Exists (“ASU 2013-11"). ASU 2013 requires, unless certain conditions exists,rapaognized tax benefit, or a port
of an unrecognized tax benefit, to be presentetiénfinancial statements as a reduction to a dedetax asset for a net operating
carryforward, similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgéomrward. ASU 20131 is effective prospectively for reporting peridukginning afte
December 15, 2013, with early adoption permittBetrospective application is also permitted. THeption of ASU 2013t1, effective
with the reporting period beginning January 1, 20840t expected to have an impact on the Comgdimancial statements.

3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Raw materials $ 1,666,52! $ 1,692,13:
Finished goods 4,750,45! 3,537,87.
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2013 2012
6,416,98. 5,230,00!
Inventory reserve (681,39) (239,759
$ 5,735,58! $ 4,990,25:

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant, and equipment consist of the Yoithy:

December 31

2013 2012
Land $ 261,89. % 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 11,389,18 11,354,21
Production equipmet 15,602,70 15,612,80
Office furniture and equipmel 3,114,45, 2,821,117
Construction in progres 610,67¢ 731,25¢
Automobiles 102,32: 102,32:

31,081,23 30,883,66
Accumulated depreciation (20,171,06) (18,984,01)

$ 10,910,147 $ 11,899,65

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenih@03 3, 2012, and 2011 was $1,272,770; $1,264886$31,267,813, respectively.
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
Intellectual propert: $ 494,39¢ $ 494,39¢
Accumulated amortization (219,35 (207,879
$ 275,04: ¢ 286,52

In 1995, the Company entered into a license agreemith the Chief Executive Officer of the Compafor the exclusive right
manufacture, market, and distribute products inigjizautomated retraction technology, which agredrnas been amended twice.
technology is the subject of various patents artdrmapplications owned by such officer of the Camp The initial licensing fee
$500,000 was amortized over 17 years. The licagseement also provides for quarterly payments 5ffoaroyalty fee on gross sal
The royalty fee expense is recognized in the perioghich it is earned. Royalty fees of $2,474,7$62,691,887; and $2,643,209
included in Cost of sales for the years ended Déeerdl, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. R@gfiayable under this agreen
aggregated $602,209 and $129,107 at December 3B &d 2012, respectively. Gross sales upon wiughlties are based we
$49,495,232; $53,837,732; and $52,864,158 for 22082, and 2011, respectively.

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembe?®13, 2012, and 2011, was $11,479; $71,532$48¢P34, respectively. Futt
amortization expense for the years 2014 througiB 20&stimated to be $11,479 per year.
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6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,

2013 2012
Prepayments from customers $ 1,720,89¢ $ 1,400,74C
Accrued professional fet 169,125 162,969
Other accrued expenses 84,997 101,961
$ 1,975,01¢ $ 1,665,67(

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31,
2013 2012

Long-term debt consists of the followin

Loan from American First National Bank. It has ay2@r amortization and 10 year maturity fi
December 10, 2009. The loan provided funding fer@kpansion of the warehouse, additi
office space, and a new Controlled Environment. Iba@ is secured by the Compasiyanc
and buildings. The interest rate is 5.96¢ $ 3,717,79! $ 3,852,51,

Note payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. Ther@sterate is 5.57%. The original amoun
the note was $327,726 with a 36 month maturity mmda April 2014. In May 2011, the lo
became payable in equal installments of principadl &nterest of approximately $9,9
Collateralized by three molding machines. It hgauechase option of $1.00 at the end of
term. 39,16¢ 152,41!

Note payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. Ther@sterate is 5.57%. The original amoun

the note was $207,260 with a 36 month maturity mmdin November 2014. Beginni

December 2011, the loan became payable in equellinents of principal and interest

approximately $6,300. Collateralized by a moldingcimine. It has a purchase option of $
at the end of the terr 67,03: 136,36!
3,823,991 4,141,29

Less: current portion (247,069 (315,08
$ 3,576,93. $ 3,826,211

The fair value of long-term liabilities, based omiagement’s estimates, approximates their repueies.

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afebwer 31, 2013, are as follows:

2014 $ 247,06«
2015 149,74
2016 159,18:
2017 169,21
2018 179,86¢
Thereafter 2,918,92!

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
On May 19, 2010, final judgment was entered in th8. District Court for the Eastern District of e Marshall Division for tt
Company which ordered that the Company recover®®60@0 plus prejudgment and p@stigment interest, and ordered a perme
injunction for BD’s 1mL and 3mL Integra syringestilin
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the expiration of certain patents. The permangnbhction was stayed for the longer of the exhaunstif the appeal of the district couwrt’
case or twelve months from May 19, 2010. In JUEO2 BD filed an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appefdr the Federal Circt
appealing the final judgment entered on May 19,020h July 2011, a thre@dge panel of the U.S. Court of Appeals for theldra
Circuit reversed the district court’'s judgment tiBd’s 3mL Integra infringed the Company’s ‘224 patend 077 patent. The U.
Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit affirméuktdistrict court’s judgment that the 1mL Integnéinges the Company’'244 ani
‘733 patents. The U.S. Court of Appeals for theldfal Circuit also affirmed the district court'sdgment that the(77 patent is n
invalid for anticipation or obviousness. The Compaad petitioned for a rehearing by all the judgkthe Federal Circuit as to whet
the three-judge panel properly construed the Cowgigapatent claim language in finding that the 3mle¢ma did not infringe. Tt
Companys petition for rehearing by all of the judges of thederal Circuit was denied with two dissents @péssued. The Compa
filed a petition for certiorari asking the Supre@eurt to review the matter. That petition was ddnin January of 2013. On Augus
2013, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern Distrof Texas issued an order adopting the Magistrdtldges Report an
Recommendation and denying BIfRule 60 motion seeking a reduction in damageasO€tober 29, 2013, BD filed its Notice of Apg
of the August 7, 2013 order to the Federal Circ@tal argument for this appeal has been set for 8)&2014. On September 30, 2(
the Company received payment of $7,724,826 (thddgtent Amount”)from BD pursuant to a stipulation in this case.e Btipulatiol
provides that if, as a result of BD’s appeal of Bistrict Court’s denial of BDs Rule 60 motion, it is judicially determined tHg&D owe:
an amount less than the Judgment Amount, BD sleabriitled to restitution by the Company of anyese payment, with intere:
Otherwise, the payment of the Judgment Amount staalbtitute satisfaction of the patent infringemjeiigment and BD shall owe
further money damages to the Company in this cage. Judgment Amount has been reflected as a ¢uiability in the Balance Shee
since the proceeds are not yet realizable.

In May 2010, the Company and an officesuit against BD in the U.S. District Court foe thastern District of Texas, Marshall Divis
alleging violations of antitrust acts, false adigéng, product disparagement, tortious interferemc unfair competition was reopen
The Company and an officer filed a Second Amendeh@aint on July 23, 2010 setting forth additiodetail regarding the allegatic
of BD's illegal conduct. BD filed a motion to dismissdatme U.S. District Court for the Eastern DistridtTexas, Marshall Divisic
denied that motion in part and granted it in pgranting the Company the right to péead certain allegations by May 13, 2011.

Company and an officer filed a Third Amended Cormlan May 2011, setting forth additional detailgegding the alleged illeg
conduct by BD. Trial was initially set for Febry&012. However, in January 2012 the parties agteea continuance to allow 1
petition for certiorari to be considered. As stiaédbove, the petition was denied in January of 208 3earing to reset a trial date

light of BD’s motion for continuance was held May 3, 2013. frteé commenced on September 9, 2013 in Tyler,afeand the jul
returned its verdict on September 19, 2013, findlmgt BD illegally engaged in anticompetitive contiwith the intent to acquire
maintain monopoly power in the safety syringe madwed engaged in false advertising under the LanAatn The jury awarded tl
Company $113,508,014 in damages for the antitdaginc which is subject to being trebled pursuanstitute. The Court conducte
hearing for post-trial motions on February 7, 202 order has not yet issued. BD has stateditipns to appeal the verdict.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdihgs, (“MDC”) sued the Company in the United States District Céur the
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division,ialiy alleging that the Company is infringing twa3J patents of MDC (6,179,812 ¢
7,090,656) that are licensed to BD. BD and MDC selinctive relief and unspecified damages. Then@any counterclaimed 1
declarations of nomfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability dfet asserted patents. The plaintiffs subsequernlyped allegatior
with regard to patent no. 7,090,656 and the Compgaiygequently dropped its counterclaims for uneefability of the asserted pater
The United States District Court for the Easterrstiit of Texas, Texarkana Division conducted d@nttaconstruction hearing
September 25, 2008 and issued its claims constructider on November 14, 2008. The case has hagedspending resolution of 1
Company’s first filed case against BD describedvaboAs of March 27, 2014, there has been no agfinithis case since the stay.
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9.

Operating Leases

In 2010, the Company entered into a ramcellable operating lease for additional offipace. Rent expense under this lease fc
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 @B$Q¥; $60,401; and $59,195, respectively. Fuameual minimum rent

payments as of December 31, 2013 are presented:belo

2014
2015
Total

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg:

Current tax provision (benefi
Federa
State
Total current provision (benefit)

Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federa
State
Total deferred tax provision (benefit)
Total income tax provision (benefit)

$

$

62,813
59,966

122,779

For the Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 83,47( $ 1,788 $ (29,070)
7,50: 8,03: 42,86
90,97: 9,81¢ 13,79
$ 90,97: $ 9,81 $ 13,79

The Company has $10,072,410 in tax benefits atalida to carry back losses for federal tax purposgse loss carry forwards w
begin to expire in 2028 for federal tax purposes laegan to expire for state tax purposes in 2013.

Deferred taxes are provided for those items redartalifferent periods for income tax and finanagigborting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigmifit portions of the deferred tax assets and lt@slare presented below:

Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carry forwar
Credit for alternative minimum tax pa
Accrued expenses and reser
Employee stock option expen
Inventory
Non-employee stock option exper
Litigation proceeds subject to stipulation
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property and equipment
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred assets
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax asse
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December 31

2013 2012
$ 381996 $ 487343
83,47 —
1,350,12! 1,165,65
315,71 295,69
338,25: 319,83(

— 15,54¢
2,929,64! —
8,837,16| 6,670,16.
(393,34 (631,109
(393,34 (631,10
8,443,81 6,039,05.
(8,443,81) (6,039,05)
$ — 3 —
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The valuation allowance increased $2,404,763 antb$1638 for 2013 and 2012, respectively.
A reconciliation of income taxes based on the faldsiatutory rate and the provision (benefit) fisdme taxes is summarized as follo

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene 2.¢ 2.¢ 2.¢
Decrease (increase) in valuation allowa (39.9 (28.0 —
Permanent difference (0.3 1.2 2.C
Return to accrual adjustmer — — (2.9
Alternative minimum ta: (1.9 — 3.4
Adjustments to temporary differences for stock amps — (11.0 —
Release of valuation allowan— Net operating loss carry forwa (39.0

Other 1.€ (0.9 (0.5
Effective tax (benefit) rate (1.5% (0.2)%

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Companyfedere
income tax returns for all tax years ended on arddecember 31, 2010, remain subject to examindtyothe Internal Revenue Servi
The Companys state and local income tax returns are subjeekémnination by the respective state and localaaiiths over variol
statutes of limitations, most ranging from thredite years from the date of filing.

10. EXCHANGE OF PREFERRED STOCK FOR COMMON STOCK AND CA SH

On September 12, 2011, the Company commenced the PXchange Offer and also engaged in private psehwith three Prefen
Stockholders. As of December 31, 2011, PrefertedkBolders had tendered a total of 1,277,464 shafr®referred Stock. A total
$1,357,275 was paid and 1,277,464 shares of ComBtock were issued as consideration to these Peefeé3tockholders. The
Preferred Stockholders agreed to waive all unpaidiends in arrears associated with their tendéhederred Stock, which resulted i
waiver of a total of $3,592,659 in unpaid dividemagrrears.

The 2011 Exchange Offer and private sales are suizedan the table below.

Number of
Preferred Number of
Stock Shares Common Amount of
Tendered by Stock Shares Accrued Annual
Preferred Cash Outlay Tendered by Dividends Dividend
Stockholders by Company Company Eliminated Reduction
Series | Class B Stock 40,50C $ 60,75( 40,50 $ — 3 20,25(
Series Il Class B Stoc 41,00( 123,00( 41,00( — 41,00(
Series IV Class B Stoc 10,00( 35,00( 10,00¢( 114,57 10,00(
Series V Class B Stoc 1,185,96. 1,138,52! 1,185,96. 3,478,08 379,50t
Total Class B Stoc 1,277,46. $ 1,357,27 1,277,46. $ 3,592,65 $§  450,75¢

11. STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a ComntookSepurchase plan structured to comply with Rdleb5-1 and 10&8 unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under then,pthe Company purchased 655,818 and 67,102 shar@913 and 201
respectively. The plan was terminated effectivguysi 30, 2013.
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12.

13.

14,

15.

Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Peafees, Rights And Limitations of the Series | CRasand Series Il Class B Converti
Preferred Stock, the Company would have been pitekdidfrom purchasing its Common Stock while dividenwere in arrear.
Therefore, to facilitate the Common Stock repurehalan, the Company paid dividends on the Serfgla$s B Preferred Stock in
amount of $38,813 on July 31, 2012 and in the amoti$12,938 at each date on October 22, 2012,aygrfil, 2013, April 22, 201
and July 22, 2013. The Company paid dividendsetdeS 11 Class B Preferred Stockholders in the amhofi $134,025 on July 31, 20
and in the amount of $44,675 on each of the samedates listed in the preceding sentence.

STOCK OPTION GRANT

The Compensation and Benefits Committee approvgiiuat of a norgualified stock option pursuant to the 2008 Stogki@n Plan ti
Walter O. Bigby, Jr., a Director, for the purchask 50,000 shares of Common Stock on May 14, 20R&lated share bas
compensation of $52,775 is included in generaladrdinistrative expense in the accompanying Stateswd#rOperations.

DIVIDENDS

On October 21, 2013 and December 20, 2013, thedBofaDirectors declared dividends on the Seriesas€B Preferred Stock in |
amount of $12,938 on each date which were paid oveMber 11, 2013 and January 20, 2014. The Comaloydeclared and pi
dividends to Series Il Class B Preferred Stockhsldie the amount of $44,675 on the same dates.N8&z 11 for information abao
dividends paid during the term of the Stock RepasehProgram.

STOCK OPTION EXERCISES

On July 10, 2012, the Chief Executive Officer o tBompany exercised a portion of his stock optibhe Company issued 2,000,
shares of Common Stock to him at an exercise pfid®.81 (aggregate consideration of $1,620,000).

Some employees exercised stock options at variatessdn 2013 and, consequently, they were issutmtah of 584,450 shares
Common Stock for an aggregate payment of $536,82x¢rcise such options. These options were grant2d08 and 2009 at exerc
prices of $0.81 and $1.30.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 shafréxeferred Stock Class A with a par value of @wlar ($1.00) per shal
5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock Class B wiparavalue of One Dollar ($1.00) per share; and G@I0 shares of Preferred St
Class C with a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) siware.

The Company has one class of Preferred Stock odlisigi Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“CIBsStock”). The Class B Stot
has five series: Series |, Series Il, Series Bki&s 1V, and Series V.

The Class B Stock has been allocated among Setiedll, IV, and V in the amounts of 103,500; 1,780; 130,245; 542,500; and 40,
shares, respectively as of December 31, 2013.rfrhaining 4,005,055 authorized shares have not dssigned a series.

Series | Class B Stock

There were 103,500 shares of $1 par value Sei@ads B Stock outstanding at December 31, 2013281@. Holders of Serie
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasimeual dividend of $0.50 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. The Company paid dividends of $38,88481,751, and $90,000 in 2013, 2012, and 2011, ctsply. At December 3
2013, approximately $13,000 of dividends which hatibeen declared were in arrears. Such arrearaggaid on January 20, 2014,

Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after thraesyfeom the date of issuance at the option ofXbmpany at a price of $7.50 per sh
plus all unpaid dividends. Each share of Seri€alss B Stock may, at the option of the stockholther converted to one share
Common Stock after three years from the date of
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issuance or in the event the Company files anainiéigistration statement under the SecuritiesoAd933. Pursuant to these terms
shares of Series| Class B Stock were convertedl @ammon Stock in 2013 or 2012. In the event ountary or involuntar
dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of the Coanyy, holders of Series | Class B Stock then oudstegnare entitled to $6.25 per shi
plus all unpaid dividends prior to any distributsote holders of Series Il Class B Stock, Serie€liss B Stock, Series IV Class B St
Series V Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series |l Class B Stock

There were 178,700 shares of $1 par value Seri€tas B Stock outstanding at December 31, 201328d&. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulaéimaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. Holders of Series Il Class B Stock gate have no voting rights until dividends are anrears and unpaid for twe
consecutive quarters. In such case, the holdes&és Il Class B Stock have the right to eled-third of the Board of Directors of t
Company. The Company paid dividends of $134,02%8%00, and $274,625 in 2013, 2012, and 2011eotisely. At December 3
2013, approximately $45,000 of dividends which hatlbeen declared were in arrears. Such arrearag@aid on January 20, 2014.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after themes/from the date of issuance at the option ofCtbmpany at a price of $15.00
share plus all unpaid dividends. Each share deSérClass B Stock may, at the option of the khmdder, be converted to one shar
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an iniggjistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these termsshares of Series Il Class B Stock were converterd Common Stock in 2013
2012. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystdikution, liquidation, or winding up of the Comparlders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shates, all unpaid dividends, after distribution olalitpns to holders of Series | Clas
Stock have been satisfied and prior to any digtidis to holders of Series Il Class B Stock, Sehé Class B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock, or Common Stock.

Series Il Class B Stock

There were 130,245 shares of $1 par value Seti€ddss B Stock outstanding at December 31, 201B28112. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulaéimaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, appreteéty $3,627,000 and $3,497,000, respectively,iwtidnds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after tiyesgrs from the date of issuance at the option @fGbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all unpaid dividends. Each share agéSd#l Class B Stock may, at the option of theckholder, be converted to one shai
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an iniggjistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these terrosshrares of Series Il Class B Stock were conveirterl Common Stock in 2013
2012. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystikition, liquidation, or winding up of the Compaimlders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shaltes all unpaid dividends, after distribution olligns to Series | Class B Stock
Series Il Class B Stock have been satisfied arat ppiany distributions to holders of Series IV €@ Stock, Series V Class B Stock
Common Stock.

Series IV Class B Stock

There were 542,500 shares of $1 par value Serig3ldgs B Stock outstanding at December 31, 2013284@. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulatimeual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable qugstérdeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, appreteéty $7,423,000 and $6,881,000, respectively,iwtidnds which have not be
declared were in arrears.
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Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesrs/from the date of issuance at the option ofxhmpany at a price of $11.00
share plus all unpaid dividends. Each share a&Sév Class B Stock may, at the option of the kmtder any time subsequent to tt
years from date of issuance, be converted intostrage of Common Stock, or in the event the Comgday an initial registratio
statement under the Securities Act of 1933. Putstmathese terms, no shares of Series |V Clas®BkSvere converted into Comrr
Stock in 2013 or 2012. In the event of voluntaryirovoluntary liquidation, dissolution, or windingp of the Company, holders
Series IV Class B Stock then outstanding are edtitb receive liquidating distributions of $11.08r share, unpaid dividends a
distribution obligations to Series | Class B Stoskyies Il Class B Stock, and Series Il Class & $§have been satisfied and prior to
distribution to holders of Series V Class B StoclCommon Stock.

Series V Class B Stock

There were 40,000 and 46,607 shares of $1 par Bddes V Class B Stock outstanding at Decembe2@13 and 2012, respective
Holders of Series V Class B Stock are entitledeiteive a cumulative annual dividend of $0.32 pareshpayable quarterly, if decla
by the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2018 2012, approximately $942,000 and $929,000, reésedye, of dividends whic
have not been declared were in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosyram the date of issuance at the option of then@ay at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all unpaid dividends. Each share of Serig3lass B Stock may, at the option of the stockhotder time subsequent to the dat
issuance, be converted into Common Stock. Purstsathese terms, 6,607 shares of Series IV ClaSsd8k were converted ir
Common Stock in 2013 and none were converted i2 204 the event of voluntary or involuntary ligatibn, dissolution, or winding 1
of the Company, holders of Series V Class B Stbek toutstanding are entitled to receive liquidatimgributions of $4.40 per sha
plus unpaid dividends after distribution obligagoto Series | Class B Stock, Series Il Class B 5t&eries Il Class B Stock, a
Series IV Class B Stock have been satisfied ara fwiany distribution to the holders of the Comn&tack.

Common stock
The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,00@sharno par value Common Stock, of which 27,187 aitd 27,252,463 shares w
outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respdcti The Company had a Common Stock repurchaae structured to comg

with Rules 10b5-1 and 10B8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 setihination of such plan in August 2013. Under phan
the Company purchased 67,102 shares in 2012 an8X&bshares in 2013. Such purchased shares areledcas treasury stock.

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a license agreement with the Exietutive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company exergisegportion of his stock option in 2012. See Nibte

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122@hd, the Company paid $93,939; $91,086; and 836 espectively, to a fam
member of its Chief Executive Officer as an empéogad consultant.

The Chief Executive Officer exchanged his Prefe®tock shares for Common Stock and cash in theHfaprarter of 2011 pursuant
the 2011 Exchange Offer on the same terms as vifeed to all Preferred Stockholders. He recei@6@07 shares of Common St
and $95,843 in exchange for 5,000 shares of SBfi®&seferred Stock and 81,607 shares of Serieséfered Stock, and he waive
total of $58,110 in unpaid dividends in arrearfie Tompanys Common Stock had a closing stock price of $1t39cwember 4, 201
the expiration date of the 2011 Exchange Offer.
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17. STOCK OPTIONS
Stock options

The Company has approved stock option plans fogtaeting of stock options to employees, Directarg] consultants. Options for
purchase of 700 shares of Common Stock remainamdistg under the 1999 Stock Option Plan, which irested pursuant to its terms
2009. Options for the purchase of 2,899,108 shafeSommon Stock have been issued under the 2008k SDption Plan, whic
authorized a total of 3,000,000 shares of CommonkStipon the exercise of stock options. OptiomsHe purchase of 1,889,931 shi
under the 2008 Stock Option Plan were outstandsngf @ecember 31, 2013. Options for the purch&se0®0,000 shares of Commr
Stock remain outstanding under an option grantédrtorhomas J. Shaw.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee adminisiérplans and determines and/or recommends tdBtiagd exercise prices
which options are granted. All executive compeinsatncluding the granting of stock options, igetenined by the Compensation |
Benefits Committee. Shares issued upon exerciggidns come from the Compasyauthorized but unissued Common Stock.
options vested over periods up to three years fiteendate of grant and generally expire ten yeaer #dfie date of grant. Unves
options issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plairexpmediately after termination of employment.

Employee options

A summary of Director, officer, and employee optgranted and outstanding under the Plans is pexbbrlow:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of peri 3,367,08. $ 0.9t 5,433,59. $ 0.91 5,508,51. $ 0.91

Granted 50,00( 1.4¢ — — — —
Exercisec (584,45() (0.92) (2,000,86)) (0.8)) (67,120 (0.87)
Forfeited (12,000 (2.3¢) (65,645 (2.29) (7,800 (0.85)
Outstanding at end of period 2,820,63 $ 0.9t 3,367,08. $ 0.9t 5,433,59 $ 0.91
Exercisable at end of peri 2,820,63. $ 0.9t 3,367,08. $ 0.9t 5433,59 $ 0.91

No employee options were issued in 2012 or 2014e fair value of the 2013 grant is $1.06 per slodnenderlying Common Stock a
is estimated on the date of the grant using thekB&choles pricing model with the following assuiops: expected volatility of 67.53'
risk free interest rate of 3.35%, and an expedtef 8.61 years. This option was issued under2D08 Stock Option Plan.

F-22




Table of Contents

The following table summarizes information abouteBtor, officer, and employee options outstandindex the aforementioned plan:
December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable

$ 8.87 70C 0.3¢€ 70C
$ 1.3C 754,10: 4.8¢ 754,10:
$ 1.4¢€ 50,00( 9.37 50,00(
$ 0.81 2,015,82 5.54 2,015,82

Non-employee options
A summary of options outstanding during the yeadedl December 31 and held by non-employees idlas/fo

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of
period 70,00 $ 0.81 302,50 $ 5.4¢ 302,50 $ 5.4¢
Granted — — — — — —
Exercisec — — — — — —
Forfeited — — (232,500 (6.90 — —
Outstanding at end of peri 70,00 $ 0.81 70,00 $ 0.81 302,50( $ 5.4¢
Exercisable at end of peri 70,000 $ 0.81 70,000 $ 0.81 302,500 $ 5.4¢

No non-employee options were issued in 2011, 2642013.

The following table summarizes information abouth+mployee options outstanding under the aforemeatiqgrians at December

2013:
Exercise Shares Weighted Average Shares
Price Outstanding Remaining Contractual Life Exercisable
$ 0.81 70,000 5.54 70,000

The Company recorded $52,775; $0; and $0 as dtaskd compensation expense in 2013, 2012, and 2&dfectively. The tot
intrinsic value of options exercised was $1,210;18%20,268; and $49,626 in 2013, 2012, and 201dpesively. The aggregi
intrinsic value of options outstanding and exetgisawith exercise prices lower than market priceDatcember 31, 2013 w
approximately $6,158,133. There is no compensatish related to non-vested stock options to begeized in the future.
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Options Pricing Models — Assumptions

The expected life and forfeiture rate assumptiacesbased on the vesting period for each optiontgaad expected exercise behav
The assumptions for expected volatility and dividigreld are based on recent historical experieriRiskSree interest rates are set us
grant-date U.S. Treasury yield curves for the spereds as the expected term.

18. 401(k) PLAN

The Company implemented an employee savings aimdment plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that iseinded to be a tagualifiec
plan covering substantially all employees. Undwer terms of the 401(k) Plan, employees may eleciotdribute up to 88% of the
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limiteéfls. The Company may, at its discretion, matopleyee contributions. In the th
quarter of 2009, the Company discontinued its matcbontributions until further notice.

19. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2013 2012 2011

U.S. sales $ 24,843,20 $ 25,3638l $ 26,655,78
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,453,15. 4,668,55! 4,736,35!
Other international sales 1,488,77 3,612,13! 710,15¢
Total sales $ 30,785,12 $ 33,64450 $ 32,102,29
Long-lived asset:

u.s. $ 10,676,05 $ 11,679,59 $ 12,412,50

International $ 234,11¢ $ 220,05¢ $ 241,35:

The Company does not operate in separate repors&lglments. The Company has minimal Itimgd assets in foreign countrie
Shipments to international customers generally irecu prepayment either by wire transfer or anvomable confirmed letter of cred
The Company does extend credit to internationalocnsrs on some occasions depending upon certa@miariincluding, but not limite
to, the credit worthiness of the customer, theibtyalof the country, banking restrictions, and tiee of the order. All transactions ar
U.S. currency.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED
The selected quarterly financial data for the msi@nded December 31, 2013 and 2012, have beevederiom the Company’
unaudited financial statements and include all stdjents, consisting only of normal recurring adpestts, necessary for a 1

presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2013
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 7,17 $ 6,907 $ 9,16( $ 7,54t
Cost of sales 4,39 5,16¢ 5,84 5,06¢
Gross profit 2,77¢ 1,73¢ 3,31¢ 2,47
Total operating expenses 4,14: 4,12¢ 4,14 3,831
Loss from operations (1,367 (2,385 (825) (1,359
Interest and other incon 11 9 7 12
Interest expense, n (52 (61) (6C) (58
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 2 2 62 25
Net loss (1,410 (2,439 (940) (1,425
Preferred stock dividend requirements (229) (229 (229) (229)
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Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Loss applicable to common shareholders $ (1,639 $ (2,669 $ (1,169 $ (1,654
Basic loss per share $ (0.06) $ (0.10) $ (0.0 $ (0.0¢6)
Diluted loss per share $ (0.06) $ (0.10 $ (0.0 % (0.0¢)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 27,238,49 27,042,37 26,972,81 26,719,60
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 27,238,49 27,042,37 26,972,81 26,719,60
Gross profit margin 38.7% 25.2% 36.2% 32.8%
(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)
2012
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 7430 $ 8,72¢ $ 9,44¢ $ 8,04:
Cost of sales 4,59( 5,397 6,09( 6,39
Gross profit 2,84( 3,331 3,35¢ 1,651
Total operating expenses 3,48¢ 3,86z 3,56¢ 4,20
Loss from operations (64€) (531) (217) (2,55))
Interest and other incon 12 11 11 13
Interest expense, n (72) (70 (68) (20)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 8 14 4 (17)
Net loss (714 (604) (272) (2,54
Preferred stock dividend requirements (230 (230 (230 (230
Loss applicable to common shareholders $ (944) $ (834 $ (502) $ (2,770
Basic loss per share $ (0.04) $ (0.0%9) $ (0.02) $ (0.10
Diluted loss per share $ (0.0 $ (0.09) $ (0.02) $ (0.10
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 25,318,70 25,318,70 26,972,81 27,268,69
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 25,318,70 25,318,70 26,972,81 27,268,69
Gross profit margin 38.2% 38.2% 35.5% 20.5%

Major variances for 2013 compared to 2012 are dubkd Medical Devise Excise Tax of 2.3% of salegdsed in 2013.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securitiehaxge Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Actlanagement, with the participation
our President, Chairman, and Chief Executive OffiGdhomas J. Shaw (the “CEQO"3nd our Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Douglas W. Cowan (the “CFQO”gcting in their capacities as our principal exaautnd financial officers, evaluated the effectesn of oL
disclosure controls and procedures, as defineduie R3a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. The terrdlalisirecontrols and procedures me
controls and other procedures that are designedgare that information required to be disclosedidyn our periodic reports is: i) record
processed, summarized, and reported within the paré@ds specified in the Securities and Exchangm@ission’s (the “SEC”yules an
forms; and ii) accumulated and communicated to Management, including our principal executive anmthgpal financial officers, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. Based upon this evaluation, @ and CFO concluded that, a:
December 31, 2013, our disclosure controls andgohoes were effective.

Managemens Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&laborting

Management is responsible for establishing and taigimg adequate internal control over our finahegporting as defined

Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. The term internaltiadrover financial reporting means a process desigby, or under the supervis
of, our principal executive and principal financidficers and effected by our Board of Directorsaddgement and other personnel, to prc
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityimdintial reporting and the preparation of financgtements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptees and includes those policies and proceduras ) pertain to the maintenance
records that in reasonable detail accurately ainly faflect our transactions and dispositions sgets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance th:
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting princig
and that our receipts and expenditures are beirdgroaly in accordance with authorizations of Mamaget and Directors; and (iii) provi
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tighetiyction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opakstion of our assets that could hay
material effect on our financial statements. Mamagnt used thénternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgioevaluate the effectiveness of our internal mardver financial reporting as requi
by paragraph (c) of Rule 13& under the Exchange Act. Management, with tiéggaation of our CEO and CFO, concluded that ioterna
control over financial reporting as of December 2113, was effective. No material weaknesses inirdgarnal control over financial reporti
were identified by Management.

Our Management, including the CEO and CFO, doegxpct that our disclosure controls and procedoir@sir internal control ov
financial reporting will prevent or detect all erscand all instances of fraud. A control systemjmatter how well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratetth control system’s objectives will be met.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repagrtin

There have been no changes during the fourth quafrR013 or subsequent to December 31, 2013 inndemal control over financi
reporting or in any other factor that has mateyialffected or is reasonably likely to materiallyfeat our internal control over financ
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The following table sets forth information concergiour Directors, executives, and certain of ogni§icant employees as of the ¢

of this report. Our Board of Directors currentlynsists of a total of seven (7) members, threen@nbers of which are Class 1 Directors
four (4) of which are Class 2 Directors which sefivetwo-year terms.

Term as

Director
Name Age Position Expires
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 63 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, ahais€ 2 Directo 2014
Douglas W. Cowan 70 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasufrincipal Accounting Office 2014

and Class 2 Directc

Russell B. Kuhlmai 60 Vice President, Sale N/A
Michele M. Larios a7 Vice President, General Counsel, and Secre N/A
Steven R. Wisnhe 56 Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productmi Class 1 Directc 2015
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Marco Laterz: 66 Class 1 Directo 2015
Amy Mack 46 Class 1 Directo 2015
Walter O. Bigby, Jr 49 Class 2 Directo 2014
Clarence Zierhu 85 Class 2 Directo 2014
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Kathryn M. Duesmar 51 Executive Director, Global Heal N/A
Lawrence G. Salern 53 Director of Operation N/A
Shayne Blythe 45 Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti N/A
John W. Fort Il 45 Director of Accounting N/A
James A. Hoove 66 Director of Quality Assuranc N/A
R. John Mada 53 Production Manage N/A
Judy Ni Zhu 55 Research and Development Mana N/A
Patti King 56 Director of National Account N/A

Executives

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, has served as Chaiom#re Board, President, Chief Executive Officend Director since o
inception. We believe it is appropriate for Mr.a8hto continue to serve as a Director and as the@r@han of the Board because of his ¢
knowledge of the strengths and weaknesses of adupts (as their primary inventor) and of the Comypéas its Founder). Further,
strategic knowledge of the Company and its competiénvironment arising from his ongoing servicssita CEO is vital to the succes:
supervision of the Company by the Board of DirextoFinally, Mr. Shaws educational background in both Engineering andoAnting i
helpful to Board deliberations. In addition to hdsities overseeing our Management, he continuelead our design team in prod
development of other medical safety devices thdizeit among other things, his unique patentedtibit ring technology. Mr. Shaw F
extensive experience in industrial product desigph lzas developed several solutions to complicatechamical engineering challenges. He
been granted multiple patents and has additiortahpgpending.

Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice President and our CRiafncial Officer, Treasurer, Principal Accounti@fficer, and a Directol
Mr. Cowan joined us as Chief Financial Officer amds elected to the Board of Directors in 1999. heé&eve it is appropriate Mr. Cow
continue to serve as a Director due to his levaheblvement in the financial state of the Compdayg its CFO) as well as his lead roli
supervising all internal control and
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disclosure control procedures and statements. I$desarves as the primary contact for investorschvienables him to bring their concern
the Board on appropriate topics as they arise.ekigertise as a CPA and experience as the Conp&mn0 allow him to guide the Board, uj
request, with regard to financial matters. Heeisponsible for our financial, accounting, investations, risk management, and foreca:
functions.

Russell B. Kuhlman joined us in February 1997 andur Vice President, Sales. Mr. Kuhlman is resjie for management of t
sales force and liaison with GPOs and product itngifior our sales organization, as well as distitou Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distribufonsfluencing legislation, and educating influehtlaealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhlman is resfeel throughout the industry and is a main contabto the safety effort in this country.

Michele M. Larios joined us in February 1998 andrently serves as our Vice President, General Galuasd Secretary. Ms. Lar
is responsible for our legal and legislative, humesource, and regulatory functions. In additmvbrking on all legal matters, both intern:
and with outside counsel, Ms. Larios oversees workny pertinent legislative issues and all relevagulatory matters.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in October 1999 as BiexW¥ice President, Engineering and Production asé Director. We believe
is appropriate that Mr. Wisner continue to serve &irector due to his extensive experience in afi@mal management. His role in overse
all engineering, production, and foreign salesveditnim to provide timely and insightful guidancgaeding the effect of Board decisions on
Company’s abilities to meet its goals. Mr. Wiserésponsibilities include the management of eraging, production, Chinese operatic
quality assurance, information technology, andriragonal sales. Mr. Wisner has extensive expegdn product design, development,
manufacturing.

Independent Directors

Marco Laterza joined us as a Director effectiveofibarch 22, 2005. We believe it is appropriate Materza continue to serve &
Director because of his skills as a CPA in actixecpce as well as his decades of experience irsiadyindividuals and entities with regarc
corporate planning and financial issues. Suchssiild experience provide a valuable contributiohis role as the designated financial e»
on the Audit Committee as well as provide valuablgependent accounting advice to the Board. Si®8, Mr. Laterza has owned ¢
operated a public accounting practice. His practiludes corporate, partnership and individuahtian, compilation/review of financi
statements, financial planning, business consylting trusts and estates. From 2004 to the présertaterza has also served as the Trea
for EZ Blue Software Corporation, a private softerabmpany. Since 2009, Mr. Laterza has servedas Rfesident of SpectraComp, Cor
private holding company. Formerly, Mr. Laterza veasployed in a number of positions from 1977 to5.@&h El Paso Natural Gas Compi
eventually serving as its Director of Accounting.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director on November 19)720We believe it is appropriate that Ms. Macktomre as a Board member «
both to her experience as a nurse (the primaryl tetar of our products) as well as her experianaginning her own company. Since Apri
2000, she has been the Secretary of EmergiStafégoéiates, a nursing agency, and she served &htbENursing Officer of EmergiStaff
Associates from 2000 to 2010. From 2003 to 20h@, was the owner and Aesthetics Nurse SpecialisBfa O2 & Medical Aesthetic
Ms. Mack has served as an emergency room nursious emergency rooms throughout her career asse.n

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dirscsince April 1996. We believe it is appropri&te Mr. Zierhut to continue 1
serve as a Director primarily due to his lifetinfeegperience in conception and development of imtioe products as well as his experienc
adapting such products to address mass producsores. During his professional career, Mr. Ziettag created over 3,000 product des
for more than 350 companies worldwide, in virtuadlyery field of manufacturing, and has won manyernmational awards for desi
excellence. His clients have included Johnson 8ndon, Abbott, Gould, and McDonnell Douglas.

Walter O. Bigby, Jr. has served on our Board okeBtiors since July 2012. We believe it is appraerfar Mr. Bigby to continue
serve as a Director due to his experience in owaimdj operating healthcare-related businessesBigly’s experience includes ownershij
several small businesses, including hospitals,imyfsomes, commercial real estate, and office eqai providers. Mr. Bigby has owned .
operated Bastrop
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Rehabilitation Hospital, a 27-bedl@cation rehabilitation hospital in Louisiana, ®n2001. He is currently a minority interest owimesevere
nursing homes in Louisiana. In 1995, Mr. Bigbydsbis home health agency to Columbia HCA and reemhia contract employee of
company (Hayden Health, Inc.) for three years dmial other home health markets. Mr. Bigby hasraveélecade of experience opera
healthcare businesses heavily regulated by Fedgealcies and has experience with Medicare and Mdieldic

Significant Employees

Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined us in 1996 and autyeserves as the Executive Director, Global HealShe provides clinic
expertise on existing products as well as thosdeirelopment. She has been instrumental in devejapaining and marketing materials
has spoken and been published on safety issuesDidsman works with international agencies to mienthe use of safe technologie
developing countries.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been employed with us si88& and has served as Director of Operationsu$osince 1998. He
responsible for the manufacture of all our produets well as all product development and procesgldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction andrestpa of our facilities in Little EIm, Texas. MsBalerno is the brother of a 5% sharehc
who ceased to be a 10% shareholder in 2008.

Shayne Blythe has been with us since 2001 andriBweactor of Sales and Marketing Logistics. Séeesponsible for developing ¢
implementing strategic directions, objectives, coshgnsive sales and marketing plans, and progréamaddition, she directs and oversee
aspects of the distribution process and custoneicgepolicies in order to monitor and maintain touser satisfaction.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. Mfort joined us in March of 2000 as a Financiabhmst and has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. Idrémary responsibilities include managing the daylay operations of the Accounting
Finance Department and coordination of the annudits, and interim reviews by our independent antants, as well as our cost accoun
and forecasting functions.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 andursirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his baedng Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is reg@erier our quality assurance functions. Mr. Heohas also developed and impleme
FDA required procedures and has been involveddr-DA inspection process.

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is ourdBcdon Manager. He is responsible for supervisibrihe production of ol
products. Prior to becoming Production ManagerJanuary 1, 2005, he served as our Production GeBengervisor. Mr. Maday h
extensive manufacturing experience in both classdl 11l medical devices.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 and is our Reseanth@evelopment Manager. Her primary focus is ow peoduct development a
improvement of current products. Prior to joining, Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with Mav8bn the original 3mL syringe a
other SBIR grant projects.

Patti S. King joined us in 2006 and is our DirecbérNational Accounts. Ms. King is responsible foanaging all activities wi
healthcare group purchasing organizations (GPQsighnincludes national contracting negotiations aodtract implementation. She has «
30 years of healthcare experience, including patiare in respiratory therapy and cardiopulmonachhology, clinical data research, clin
software development, sales, sales and operatiamagement, and national account (group purchasmginess development. In 2005
2006, Ms. King served on our Board of Directors.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS
There are no family relationships among the ab@rsgns except as set forth above.
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DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES

No Directors hold directorships in reporting comigan
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or any business in which person was an executive officer have beerhiagian a bankruptcy petitio
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludimadfitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjsct to any order enjoining or suspent
their involvement in any type of business, or bparty to an alleged violation of a securities l@ammmodities law, law or regulation respec
financial institutions or insurance companies, @awegulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud, orles of any organization that has disciplir
authority over its members.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRNCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires our Dinegtexecutive officers, and persons who own maoae 0% of a registered clas:
our equity securities to file with the SEC initi@ports of beneficial ownership (Form 3) and repaoiftchanges in beneficial ownership (Fa
4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our other equtusties. Officers, Directors, and greater th@fwlshareholders are required by the SEC
regulations to furnish us with copies of all Sewti6(a) reports they file. Based on our reviewlaf forms submitted to us during and \
respect to its most recent fiscal year, all of Directors, executive officers, and 10% shareholfieg all reports timely.

CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, we adopted a codetbics that applies to all employees, includingt, hot limited to, our princip
executive and financial officers. Our Code of Biesis Conduct and Ethics is designed to deter waingdnd to promote:

1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethiaidling of actual or apparent conflicts of inteselsetween personal ¢
professional relationships;

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabkeldisure in reports and documents that we file wathsubmit to, the SE
and in our other public communications;

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, ruéesl regulations;
4, The prompt, internal reporting of violations of thede to an appropriate person or persons idehiifithe code; and
5. Accountability for adherence to the code.

A copy of the code, as amended in 2009, is incaedrherein as Exhibit No. 14Ve have posted a copy of the code on our web:
www.vanishpoint.com/investor.htm. Please follow thnk to “Governance” then follow the link to “Chars,” then click on RVP Corporat
Code of Conduct.”Any amendment to this code or waiver of its appicrato the principal executive officer, principfthancial officer
principal accounting officer, or controller or slari person shall be disclosed to investors by meéasForm 8K filing with the SEC. We wi
provide to any person without charge, upon requestpy of such code of ethics. Such requestsligh@usubmitted in writing to Mr. Dougl
W. Cowan at 511 Lobo Lane, P.O. Box 9, Little EThexas 75068-0009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
We have a separatetlesignated standing Audit Committee establishedcitordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Clarence Zierhut, Marco Laterza, akdlter O. Bigby, Jr. Each of the members of thedifilCommittee is independent

determined by the NYSE MKT rules.
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Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that we fa\Jeast one financial expert serving on the A@dimmittee. Mr. Marco Later
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finaloipert. Mr. Laterza is independent as definedMadit Committee members by the list
standards of the NYSE MKT.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Objectives of Our Compensation Plan

Our executive officer compensation program (therffPensation Program’is based on the belief that competitive compensat
essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewaghly qualified and industrious executive officel®ur Compensation Program is intende
accomplish the following:

attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;

provide incentives and rewards for superior perforoe by the executive officers; and

align the interests of executive officers with thierests of our stockholders.

What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award
Our Compensation Program is designed to awardsagibrior long-term performance by our executivécefs and their loyalty.

Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation amgfds Committee has approved an executive offtoenpensation program tl
consists of four basic components:

base salary;

short-term incentive compensation in the form affrchonuses;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therfof stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galte available on the same terms to all employees)
Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compensati Program
Base Salary

We choose to pay a significant component of our pemsation in base salary due to the fact that mané€ial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of BDntil such time as we believe that we have accesthe market, we believe that il

appropriate to weigh our Compensation Program heawvfavor of base salaries rather than in inoemtiompensation.

Cash Bonuses

From time to time and when our cash reserves alleewgrant cash bonuses in order to reward sigmifieéforts or the accomplishm
of short term goals. The Compensation and Ben€fitemittee last granted such bonuses in 2010.r Rrip010, the last bonuses were gra
in 2003.
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Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Longterm incentives are provided through grants oflstmations. The grants are designed to align therésts of executive office
with those of stockholders and to provide each etvee officer with a significant incentive to mareaffom the perspective of an owner witt
equity stake in the Company.

How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remains the same until tisemereview of such compensation by the Compemsaind Benefits Committe
Compensation, other than that of the Chief Exeeutdfficer, has generally not been reviewed annuallnder the terms of Mr. Shasv’
employment agreement, his compensation is reviemedally.

Base Salary

The base salary for each of our executive officesubjectively determined primarily on the badishe following factors: experienc
individual performance, contribution to our perfamece, level of responsibility, duties and functiosalary levels in effect for compara
positions within and without our industry, and im&l base salary comparability considerations. el@wv, salaries can also be affected by
long-term needs.

These base salaries are reviewed periodically aadba adjusted based upon the factors discusstbe iprevious paragraph, as v
as upon individual performance during the previfissal year, changes in the duties, responsilslitiad functions of the executive officer,
general changes in the compensation peer groufichwve compete for executive talent. The relatisdght given to each of these factor
the Compensation and Benefits Committeeécommendation differs from individual to indival, as the Compensation and Ben
Committee deems appropriate.

In 2009, all employees above a certain salary |lbae€l their salaries reduced by 10%. All employeféscted by the salary reduct
had their salaries increased by the amount of ¢aeiation. Such increase was effective for mostleyges on August 6, 2012 and \
effective for four of our executive officers on Obéer 28, 2013.

Mr. Shaws Employment Agreement provides that his salargumatically increased by the percentage incr@askee consum
price index (“CPI") from the previous year. The mjgensation and Benefits Committee decided to iserddr. Shaws salary by the Cl
percentage increase ($6,840 or 1.5%) over his 288y for 2014.

Cash Bonuses

The bonuses, when paid, are paid on a discretiobasjs as determined by the Compensation and Ber@fimmittee. Factc
considered by the Compensation and Benefits Comithclude personal performance, level of respditgjband the factors used
determination of base salary as stated above, exidpa greater focus on the prior fiscal yeaheTCompensation and Benefits Comm
also considers our need to retain cash in decidimgther to grant cash bonuses.

Long-Term Incentive: Stock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fiora to time and may do so in the future. A stagkion was issued to
independent Director in 2013. Options are genegathnted to regular full-time employees and office

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and Benefitsn@ttee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determininguitable aggregate fair market value of optionsd@ranted include our financial conditi
the number of options already outstanding, and#nefit to the norxecutive officer employees. The proposal includé&zmation relating t
the expected expense of such grants to be recabbyzas, the approximate number of options to beed, the number of options
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currently outstanding, the employees to be includeel amount of stock currently outstanding, arerttethod under which the options wc
be awarded.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedpproved by the Compensation and Benefits Commitisnagement begi
determining the aggregate number of shares undgrlyptions that can be granted under such app(baakd on the fair value of an option
the purchase of one underlying share). Factotaded in the determination of the value of an aptipant for the purchase of one share inc
current market price of the Company’s stock, theppsed exercise price, the proposed expiration tlaevolatility of the Company’ stock
and the risk free rate. We may retain an indepaindetside consultant to determine such valuethénpast we have utilized the BlaSkhole
model as well as the binomial model, but we mayatker methods in the future as more appropriathods are developed.

Management provides the Compensation and Beneditsndttee with a proposal regarding option grantexecutive officers. If tt
recommendation is acceptable, the committee gthateptions. If the committee feels changes anéteak it grants options on its own terms.

With regard to many past grants, after the aggeegaimber of shares underlying the options to beitgdawas determined, °
allocated the options to our various departmentsgua factor based on their annual compensatioeditheir performance rating. 1
individual employee’s allocation factor was the rarator of a fraction. The denominator was the depent's sum of all factors (annt
compensation times performance ratings of all tiggbde employees). The resulting fraction was tiplied by the stock options to be awar
to determine the employeeindividual portion of the aggregate approvedapi Future grants may be based on the valuentfilootions t
the Company and not necessarily pursuant to amyuiar.

The allocation may be further reviewed by each depent's management if they believed certain employee® wet awarded
appropriate number of options. Management wouldicam any suggestions.

Each stock option grant to employees allows theleyege to acquire shares of Common Stock at a fpeek per share (never It
than the closing stock price of the Common Stockhendate of grant) for a fixed period (usually taars). With regard to grants priol
2009, each option generally became exercisable thftee years, contingent upon the employemintinued employment with us. Howe
options issued to Officers and Directors pursuarthe 2008 option exchange offer, vested immedidt®l nonemployee Directors and af
one year for employees (including employee DirejtorOptions granted in 2009 and later vested ia wear for executive officers a
immediately for noremployee Directors. Accordingly, generally stogkion grants will provide a return to the employesy if the employe
remains employed by us during the vesting periad,taen only if the market price of the underlyidgmmon Stock appreciates. Future gr
may vest over a shorter or longer period.

How Each Compensation Element and Decision Fits IntOverall Compensation Objectives

Our Compensation Program is intended to accomptishfollowing objectives: 1) attract and retain Hligtalented and producti
executive officers; 2) provide incentives and redgafior superior performance by the executive officand 3) align the interests of execu
officers with the interests of our stockholders.

We pay the bulk of our compensation in the formcagh compensation due to the fact that competingnimanticompetitive
environment means that results will not always @mamensurate with performance. We believe thap&r®rmance of our executives has t
outstanding. We believe this is especially truegithe anteompetitive environment in which we operate. Basuare granted occasionall
recognize extraordinary performance and/or extiaarg job requirements. We believe this approaut &eighting of compensation eleme
is necessary to retain our executive talent duba@nvironment in which we operate.

Periodically, we grant stock options with the iritéa provide both an incentive and reward to exegeubfficers for longterrr
performance and to align the interests of our egg#g with that of the shareholders.

29




Table of Contents
Shareholder Advisory Votes

A t our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders, we gemliour shareholders with the opportunity to castdvisory vote on t
compensation paid to our named executive officeayton-pay”). An overwhelming majority of the veteast on the say-quay proposal we
voted in favor of the proposal. We believe thas ik an overall endorsement by the shareholdemipBpproach to executive compensat
The Compensation Committee will continue to take imccount the outcome of future say{my votes when making compensation decis
for the named executive officers in the future. Mtend to hold the next say-on-pay vote at oura2éxinual meeting of shareholders.

Allocation Between Long-Term/Current and Between Cah/Non-Cash Compensation

All of our long-term compensation consists of reash compensation in the form of stock options. M&keve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximige longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevetause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mogmns#icant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock options. Managemententivized to maximize shareholder value and beéllrewarded if they do so. Howeve
significant base salary enables us to retain thispetent Management despite the current inabdityrovide valuable equity incentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Are Ganted

Generally, option awards to executive officers gmanted by the Compensation and Benefits Commiéttekfor others are grantec
the discretion of the Board after recommendatiothefCompensation and Benefits Committee or orcdimemittees own initiative. No awart
are granted if the Compensation and Benefits Cotaendoes not support a recommendation.

Unfortunately, our stock price does not always r@acexpected to our achievements. Accordingltineds, options have been grar
to aid in retaining competent and experienced ekexsi without regard to the then current stock gri¢tiowever, such options always h
exercise prices that are at or above fair markietevan the date of grant.

In addition, there is no relationship between tatedf grant of options and our possession of nateonpublic information (i.e., w
grant options without regard to whether or not we ia possession of material npablic information). Furthermore, it is our polieyith
regard to options that (although the options cdiddexercised) the underlying shares could not lkisto the market while the executive \
in possession of material n@ublic information under our insider trading policAccordingly, we believe that there is minimadkriof the
executive profiting from such material nonpublifoirmation.

What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Are Téen Into Account in Setting Compensation Policiesred Making Compensatior
Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trends in sales andamestaken into account when considering the adiisabf increasing base salaries
granting cash bonuses. However, no specific iteht®rporate performance are taken into accousgiting executive compensation due tc
fact that we compete in a monopolistic environmand, therefore, significant achievement or perforceais not always correlated w
corporate results. At such times that any of thastrs make it inadvisable to increase salaregrant bonuses, then consideration is give
increasing option awards, taking into account thlee of prior option awards.

Awards are granted on the basis of historical perémce. Accordingly, there is no discretion torgfgthe awards once granted.
How Compensation Reflects Individual Performance

Executive compensation is not based on the indalidicontribution to specific, quantitative corporatgectives due to the fact tl
we compete in a monopolistic environment. Howetrex,individual's contribution to
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our performance is determined pursuant to qualgafactors as discussed above unddow We Determine the Amount or Formula
Payment in Light of Our Objectives.”

Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Compesation Materially

We consider our cash position, current liquidignids, and the short-term and lalegm needs for cash reserves (especially in lig
the hostile environment in which we operate) whesluating whether we can change compensation ra#yeait a given time.

On an individual-by-individual basis, we also calesithe value of past option compensation, the etitgeness of that individual’
base salary, and that individual’s contributiorotw goals.

The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatments oDur Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executives and other eyepl®are expensed for accounting purposes und&tdle& Compensation Topic
the Financial Accounting Standards Board AccounStandards Codification. We expense all of ouraoptosts as we do the costs of sal:
and any periodic bonuses. Accordingly, the impafctax treatment of various compensation forms doesimpact our compensati
decisions. Stock option expense is not recogri@edax purposes, except in the case of non-qedlifitock options. For najualified stoc
options, the intrinsic value of the option is reszgd when the option is exercised.

Our Policy Regarding Stock Ownership and Hedging

We do not have a policy regarding stock ownershyipekecutive officers. We prohibit certain stoclrtsactions by employees
Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of our stock within a six mpetiod;
2. Short sales of our stock; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or other derivativeusiies involving our stock.

Furthermore, employees and Directors are requirgaid-clear any hedging transactions.

Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program

In 2003, we hired Trinity Executive Recruiters,.Irto assist us in providing benchmarks for the rgattomponent of executi
compensation by similarly sized companies in simidustries for persons that hold positions whach currently fulfilled by various memb:
of our executive team. These benchmarks at le@giost existing executive compensation.

The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Deterntiing Compensation

Management establishes the initial recommendatimgarding compensation for all employees, includihgmselves. Tt
Compensation and Benefits Committee reviews exeegtimpensation changes and the process by wheadmntiployees are compensated.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement
We have an Employment Agreement with Mr. ThomasSBaw (the “Employment Agreementyhich was modified effecti
January 1, 2008 to avoid adverse tax consequendds.tShaw created by the passage of the Ameriohs Creation Act of 2004. No otl

executives or Directors are compensated pursuarhfloyment agreements.
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The Employment Agreement provides for an initialipa of three years which ended December 31, 201D automatically ar
continuously renews for consecutive two-year pexiodhe Employment Agreement is terminable eitheu$ or Mr. Shaw upon 30 days’
written notice or upon Mr. Shaw’s death.

The Employment Agreement provides for an annuargalf at least $416,400 with an annual salaryeiase equal to no less than
percentage increase in the CPI over the prior y@dre Employment Agreement requires that Mr. Sisasalary be reviewed by 1
Compensation and Benefits Committee annually, whlddll make such increases as it considers apptepriMr. Shaw took a 10% salary
in August of 2009, along with all other executivifiaers and other employees earning over a cedalary. In October 2013, his salary
increased by the amount of the reduction. Addililyn the Compensation and Benefits Committee msed his 2014 salary by $6,840 (1.
over his 2013 salary in accordance with the peaggnincrease in the CPI over the prior year.

Under the Employment Agreement, we are obligategréwide certain benefits, including, but not liedtto, participation in qualifie
pension plan and profit-sharing plans, participatin the Company Cafeteria Plan and other such insurance benafitgided to othe
executives, paid vacation, and sick leave. Weatge obligated to furnish him with a cellular tedepe and suitable office space as we
reimburse him for any reasonable and necessargfqudcket travel and entertainment expenses indusyehim in carrying out his duties ¢
responsibilities, membership dues to professiorgdmizations, and any business-related seminars@mfdrences.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, we are dielijto indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expensesnt costs, and all liabilitie
incurred in connection with any proceeding invotyimm by reason of his being an officer, employ@eagent of the Company. We are fur
obligated to pay reasonable attorney fees and eggesmd court and other costs associated withefénse in the event that, in Mr. Shavgole
judgment, he needs to retain counsel or otherwipera his personal funds for his defer

Upon his death, Mr. Shag’estate shall be entitled to his salary throughdhte of death, applicable benefits, and reimiouesé o
expenses.

We have the right to terminate the Employment Agreet if Mr. Shaw incurs a permanent disability dgrithe term of h
employment. A permanent disability means that 8fraw is unable to engage in any substantial gaadtivity by reason of any medice
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expeotéast for a continuous period of
less than 12 months or is, by reason of any meadidaterminable physical or mental impairment whiem be expected to result in deat
can be expected to last for a continuous periatbbiess than 12 months, receiving income replaoéimenefits for a period of not less the
months under an accident and health plan covennpglayees of the Company. Mr. Shaw shall also benskl to be disabled if he
determined to be totally disabled by the Socialugigc Administration. In such event, Mr. Shaw istided to his salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, and s&ay period of 24 months as well as applicablecfien

Mr. Shaw’s employment may be terminated for cause whiclefged to be conviction of a felony which is maadlsi detrimental t
the Company, proof, as determined finally by a toficompetent jurisdiction of the gross negligencevillful misconduct which is material
detrimental to the Company, or proof, as determifiedlly by a court of competent jurisdiction, oftaeach of a fiduciary duty which
materially detrimental to the Company. In suchngévbe shall be entitled to his salary throughdh& of termination plus reimbursemen
expenses.

If Mr. Shaw is terminated without cause and nohiatimplicit request, Mr. Shaw shall be entitledhis salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, his s&tar24 months, as well as applicable benefits.

If Mr. Shaw resigns (other than because of a changeontrol), he is entitled to his salary throutire date of terminatio
reimbursement of expenses, salary for 90 daysappticable benefits.

Mr. Shaw has the right under this agreement t@resi the event that there is a change in contfol'‘Change of Control"shall b¢
deemed to have occurred on either of the follovdatgs: (i) the date any one person
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(other than Mr. Shaw), or more than one persom@@s a group, acquires (or has acquired during2heonth period ending on the date of
most recent acquisition by such person or persowslership of stock of the Company possessing 30%are of the total possible voti
power of the stock of the Company (assuming the ediate conversion of all then outstanding convetireferred stock) or (ii) the dati
majority of members of the Board of Directors ipleeed during any 1Bronth period by Directors whose appointment or telacis no
endorsed by a majority of the members of the ComwyifzaBoard of Directors before the date of the appoémt or election. Mr. Shaw furtt
has the right to resign if there is a change inenship. A change in ownership is defined to haveuaed on the date that any one pe
(other than Mr. Shaw) or more than one person g@ais a group acquires ownership of the Compasyock that, together with the st
previously held by such person or group, consstut@re than 50% of the total fair market valueotaltvoting power (assuming the immed
conversion of all then outstanding convertible prefd stock) of the Company. In such event Mrv&isaentitled to salary through the dat
termination, salary for 24 months, reimbursemereafenses, and applicable benefits.

Mr. Shaws commitment to the Company may not be construedragenting him from participating in other busises or fror
investing his personal assets as may require antalsor incidental time in the management, cong@maand protection of such investme
provided such investments or businesses cannairistroed as being competitive or in conflict witlke business of the Company.

Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-year nompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employewsohe year, and not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit acrounts or customers in the event of terminatiohimemployment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a ckasfgcontrol or ownership.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has redeavel discussed the COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANAIS
required by Item 402(b) of RegulationkSwith Management, and, based on the review anclidgons referred to in paragraph (e)(5)(i)(#
Item 407 of Regulation &, has recommended to the Board of Directors that COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS |
included in this report on Form 10-K.

CLARENCE ZIERHUI1
WALTER O. BIGBY, JR
AMY MACK
SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets ftirthtotal compensation paid or accrued by us theepast three fiscal years
or for the account of the principal executive dfficthe principal financial officer, and the thigghest paid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2011 -2013

All Other
Salary Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year $) ($) $
Thomas J. Sha 2011 392,810 — 392,81(

President and CE! 2012 406,714 220,00 626,71

(principal executive officer 2013 420,280 — 420,28(
Michele M. Larios 2011 315,281 — 315,28:

Vice President 2012 315,000 — 315,00(

General Counst¢ 2013 320,683 — 320,68:
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All Other
Salary Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year $) ($) $)
Douglas W. Cowal 2011 261,051 — 261,05:
Vice President, CF( 2012 261,000 — 261,00(
(principal financial officer, 2013 265,462 — 265,46:

principal accounting officel
Steven R. Wisne 2011 261,000 — 261,00(
Executive Vice Presider 2012 261,000 — 261,00(
Engineering and Productic 2013 265,462 — 265,46
Russell B. Kuhimai 2011 125,377 — 125,37
Vice President, Sale 2012 130,916 — 130,91t
2013 143,429 — 143,42
(1) This amount is the result of Mr. Shaagain on exercising a portion of his nonqualifs#dck option for 2,000,000 shares of Com!

Stock. This gain had no effect on our financiatements. The expense related to the stock optfasgecognized in previous years.
Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Please se€ompensation Pursuant to Employment Agreemenabove and POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION (
CHANGE IN CONTROL below for terms of our only emploent agreement in effect.

For each Named Executive Officer, salary represed®% of total compensation for 2013.
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following Outstanding Equity Awards at FiscaafEnd Table sets forth information regarding unexsadioptions held by t
principal executive officer, the principal finankaficer, and the three highest paid additiona@xive officers as of December 31, 2013.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2013 FISCAL YEAR END
Option Awards

Number of
Securities
Underlying Option
Unexercised Exercise Option
Options Price Expiration
Name Exercisable (% Date
Thomas J. Sha 1,000,001 0.81 7-15-19
President, CE(
(principal executive officer
Michele M. Larios 97,05( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President 152,95( 0.81 7-15-19
General Counst
Douglas W. Cowal 102,00( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, CF( 98,00( 0.81 7-15-19
(principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer)
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Number of
Securities
Underlying Option
Unexercised Exercise Option
Options Price Expiration
Name Exercisable (%) Date
Steven R. Wisne 100,70( 1.3C 11-18-18
Executive Vice Presider 23,50( 0.81 7-15-19
Engineering and Productic
Russell B. Kuhimai 63,45( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, Sale 25,00( 0.81 7-15-19

PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan other than the 4Qik) which is available to all employees the fofthe month after 90 days
service.

401(k) Plan

We implemented an employee savings and retiremiamt @he “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that is intended e a taxgualified plai
covering substantially all employees. Under thinteof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmute up to 88% of their compensation
the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We may,oar discretion, match employee contributions. Wespended matching contributi
beginning August 1, 2009 until further notice.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CRTROL
The following table identifies the types and amasuot payments that shall be made to Thomas J. ShanCEO, in the event of
termination of his employment or a change in cdrpey his Employment Agreement. Such paymentd slgamade by us and shall be one

time, lump sum payments except as indicated below.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013%

Salary Amounts

Through Owed Payment
Trigger Under Undiscounted Salary Equal to
Event Benefit Reimbursement For a Period of 24 90 Days’ Value of
Payment Triggering Event Date Plans® of Expenses Months Salary Payments®)
Death X X X — — —
Disability X X X $912,03€ — $912,03€
Termination With Caus X — X — — —
Termination Without Caus X X X $912,03¢€ — $912,03€
Resignation (Other Than After a
Change in Control X X X — $114,005 $114,00%
Resignation (After a Change in
Control) X X X $912,03€ — $912,03€
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Q) The above payments would be paid under Mr. Seagreement at certain times. Any payments ariaging result of disability

resignation would be paid not sooner than six norghd one day from the termination date but nadrl#tan seven months from

termination date. Any payments arising as a resfulteath would be paid no later than the"@ay following the death. Payments arising
result of termination with cause or terminationhaitit cause would be paid not later than thé 3tay following the date of termination exc
that any amount due in excess of an amount equbkttesser of: i) two times annual compensatioii) awo times the limit on compensati
under section 401(17) of the Internal Revenue Q¥d&86 such amount in excess shall be paid neeedinen six months and one day aftel
date of termination but in no event later than savenths after the date of termination. Under $traw’s agreement, Mr. Shaw has agree
a one-year noeompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employ@eshe year, and not make known our customers asuats or to call on
solicit our accounts or customers in the eveneaghtnation of his employment for one year unlegstdrmination is without cause or pursi
to a change of control. However, it is not cldwttthe above payments are conditioned on the ppeaface of these contractual obligations.

(2) Mr. Shaw participates in our benefit plans whichnad discriminate in scope, terms, or operatiofairor of executive officers. Su
plans are generally available to all salaried eygds. Accordingly, the value of such paymentsosincluded in the “Value of Payments”
column.

3) This value does not include payments under ourfiigrians for reasons set forth in footnote 2 abotreaddition, this value assun
that the triggering event occurred on Decembe813. Authorized payments under the EmploymeneAgrent are also capped to one d
less than the amount that would cause Mr. Shawe thé recipient of a parachute payment under Se280G(b) of the Internal Revenue Cc
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies the types and amasuot compensation earned by our Directors (with ékeeption of those that :
named Executive Officers as described in footndiethe table) in the last Fiscal Year:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2013

Fees Earnec

or Paid in Option
Cash Awards Total
Name @) $ $®@ %)

Marco Laterze $ 2,50C $ — $ 2,50(

Amy Mack $ 2,50C $ — $ 2,50(

Clarence Zierhu $ 2,50( $ — $ 2,50(

Walter O. Bigby, Jr $ 2,50C $ 52,77% $ 55,27t
(1) Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas W. Cowan, and Steven WaeeNamed Executive Officers who are also Directdrheir compensati
is reflected in the Summary Compensation and dHiges presented earlier.
(2 50,000 shares of Common Stock underlie the optiantgd to Mr. Bigby in 2013. The value of thismrés estimated on the date

the grant using the Black Scholes pricing modehulite following assumptions: expected volatilify6d.53%, risk free interest rate of 3.3!
and an expected life of 8.61 years. These optimre issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plan.

Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Tabk for 2013
In 2013 we paid each n@mployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anchivarsed travel expenses, if airfare, hotel, ane!
reasonable traveklated expenses were incurred to attend BoardimgsetWe do not pay any additional amounts for matee participatio

or special assignment.

Generally, employee Directors are compensated omtavill basis as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCU3$ AND
ANALYSIS. However, one employee, Mr. Thomas J.\8haur President and CEO, is
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compensated pursuant to an employment agreemédsePsee “Compensation Pursuant to Employmentefggat”, set forth above for an
depth summary of the terms of such agreement.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eipdtion

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is cugrerttinposed of Clarence Zierhut, Walter O. Bigby, dnd Amy Mack. Each
these members of this committee is an independeatdBmember and none have ever been employees Glttmpany.

There are no interlocking Directors or executivéicefs between us and any other company. Accolglinpne of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director or exieuofficer for another entity whose executiveigdgfs or Directors served on our Boart
Directors.

COMPENSATION POLICIES AND PRACTICES AS THEY RELATEO RISK MANAGEMENT

We do not believe that ristaking incentives are created by our compensatidicips. We do not have business units. We beliba
our compensation expense is a reasonable perceotagwenues overall. We have not set specifidfoperance criteria for the award
bonuses. Salaries and bonuses, if any, are aw#astl on skill, experience, and our overall reesnuNoneash awards to employees
made periodically in the form of stock options, alhiwe believe align the employeesterests with those of stockholders. We review
compensation policies and practices as they rédatisk management objectives if compensation arrsoare materially amended or if our |
profile changes. No changes to our compensatitoig® and practices have been implemented asu#t ;fschanges to our risk profile.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth information relatit@gour equity compensation plans as of Decembg2@13:
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities

remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities to Weighted average under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column(a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 2,890,633 $ 0.9t 100,89:.
Total 2,890,63. $ 0.9t 100,89:.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee author{zed the shareholders approved) a grant of an rogto the purchase
3,000,000 shares of Common Stock to our CEO, Tham8bkaw. The option is exercisable at a pricB0o81 per share, the market price or
date of grant. The option will terminate in 201dr. Shaw exercised a portion of the option ford®,000 shares of Common Stock in 2012.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth certain informatiggarding the beneficial ownership as of March(®,4 for each person known by
to own beneficially 5% or more of our Common Sto&kcept pursuant to applicable
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community property laws, each shareholder idemntiffethe table possesses sole voting and investpwmér with respect to his or her sha
except as noted below.

Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of

Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class @
Common Stocl

Thomas J. Sha® 14,665,64 51.8%

511 Lobo Lane

P.O. Box 9

Little Elm, TX 7506¢-0009

Suzanne M. Augug® 3,800,00t 13.9%

5793 Lois Lane

Plano, TX 7502

Lillian E. Salernd® 1,776,00i 6.5%

777 7th Avenue 430

Washington DC 2000

Lloyd I. Miller, 1l ® 1,416,93 5.2%

222 Lakeview Avenue

Suite 160-365

West Palm Beach, FL 334(
Q) The Percent of Class is calculated for the ComnmtonkSclass by dividing each beneficial owrseBRmount of Beneficial Ownersh

as shown in the table above, by the sum of thd tmitstanding Common Stock (27,296,312 shares) tilas beneficial ownes’ stocl
equivalents (options), if any.

(2) 1,000,000 of the shares identified as Common Stwekshares acquirable through the exercise ofck siption. 2,800,000 of tl
shares are owned by Ms. Suzanne August (see feo8)dbut are controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuant toading Agreement. These shares
permanently controlled by Mr. Shaw until such time they are sold by Ms. August. These sharesnatadied in the share amounts
percentages for both Mr. Shaw and Ms. August inatl@ve table. Mr. Shaw has investment power oy@0Q000 shares of Common Stoc
Trustee pursuant to trust agreements for the keoefamily members. Ms. August has voting conwekr such 1,000,000 shares as Sp
Trustee (see footnote 3). These shares are intindde share amounts and percentages for botlshMw and Ms. August in the above table.

3 Ms. Augusts 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&haw pursuant to a Voting Agreement. These staeeicluded i
the share amounts and percentages for both Mr. &hawis. August in the above table. Ms. Augustyasg control over 1,000,000 shs
of Common Stock as Special Trustee pursuant to agreements for the benefit of family members.. $traw has investment power over ¢
1,000,000 shares as Trustee. These shares andeddin the share amounts and percentages forNbotBhaw and Ms. August in the abi
table.

(4) 25,000 shares identified as Common Stock are shdrieh are obtainable by the exercise of a stotlonp

(5) The number of shares held by this person was dadddimom a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 12, 20Rdrsuant to the Sched
13G/A, Lloyd I. Miller, 11l has sole voting and diesitive power for all reported shares.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain informaticegarding the beneficial ownership of our Commoocktas of March 3, 2014, 1
each Named Executive Officer specified by Item #0Regulation XK (i.e., our CEO, CFO, and three other highest maddcutive officers
and each Director of the Company. Except purstmapplicable community property laws or as otheendiscussed below, each shareh:
identified in the table possesses sole voting amdstment power with respect to his or her shares.

Amount and
Nature of Percent
Name of Beneficial of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl
As a Group
Named Executive Officers and Directt 15,566,87 55.1%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha® 14,665,64 51.6%
Michele M. Larios® 261,001 <1%
Douglas W. Cowa® 200,00( <1%
Steven R. Wisne®) 129,45! <1%
Russell B. Kuhimai® 89,45( <1%
Clarence Zierhu®™ 62,50( <1%
Marco Laterze® 60,00( <1%
Walter O. Bigby, Jr® 55,00( <1%
Amy Mack 19 43,82¢ <1%
(1) The Percent of Classis calculated for the indiglduholding Common Stock by dividing each benefidaner's Amount o

Beneficial Ownership, as shown in the table abbyethe sum of the total outstanding Common Stodk226,312 shares) plus that benef
owner’s stock equivalents (options), if any. Therdent of Class is calculated for the “As a Grougv by totaling all of the Percent
Class percentages appearing in the chart.

(2) 1,000,000 of these shares are acquirable througlestharcise of a stock option. 2,800,000 of theeshare owned by Ms. Suzal
August but are controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuant oéing Agreement. These shares are permanentiyralied by Mr. Shaw until such tir
as they are sold by Ms. August. These sharesnahedied in calculating Mr. Shas/percentages in the above table. Mr. Shaw hastimes
power over 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock astdeysursuant to trust agreements for the benefiammily members. These shares
included in calculating Mr. Shaw’s percentageshim above table.

) 250,000 of these shares are acquirable by theiesgeststock options. 1,000 of these shares areedvwy Ms. Larios’ children.
(4) These shares are acquirable by the exercise & sfions.

(5) 124,200 of these shares are acquirable by theisgeststock options.

(6) 88,450 of these shares are acquirable by the erenfistock options.

@) These shares are acquirable by the exercise & sfiions.

(8) 50,000 of these shares are acquirable by the erentistock options.

(9) 50,000 of these shares are acquirable by the erentistock options.

(10) These shares are acquirable by the exercise & sfiions.
There are no arrangements, the operation of whaldwesult in a change in control of the Compatiier than:
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1. Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be contrélebllr. Shaw under their Voting Agreement uponttisaie to a third party; and
2. Mr. Shaw was granted an option for the purclaisg 000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which Q@00 shares of Comm
Stock remain eligible for purchase upon exercidér. Shaw is able to control 51.8% of the currentiytstanding shares of 1
Common Stock and would control 47.20% of the Comi@ttk assuming the exercise of all outstandingpoptand conversion of
outstanding preferred shares.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa&ns, and Director Independence

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set foloty were made on terms no less favorable to us ¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with durdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hagiewed and approved all related p
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committegiews all proposed transactions where the amownotied meets or exceeds $120,000.

In 1995, Thomas J. Shaw, President, Chief Execufiffcer, and shareholder holding more than 5%haf dutstanding Comm
Stock, was paid a licensing fee of $500,000 (amedtiover 17 years) by us for the exclusive worlénlidensing rights to manufacture, mar
sell, and distribute retractable medical safetydpots. A royalty of 5% of gross sales of all lised products sold to customers over the li
the Technology Licensing Agreement is paid. O$ tfuyalty, Ms. Suzanne August, the former spouddfShaw, is entitled to $100,000
quarter. Mr. Shaw receives the remainder of thialty. A royalty of $1,701,659 and $2,185,019 wasd to Thomas J. Shaw in 2013
2012, respectively. Ms. August received $300,60R013 and $500,000 in 2012.

On July 10, 2012, Mr. Shaw exercised a portionisfskock option. The Company issued 2,000,000eshafrf Common Stock to him
an exercise price of $0.81 (aggregate considerafidi,620,000).

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetablishing corporate policies and for our ovepatformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, a majority (four of ey of the Directors serving on our Board of Dicgstare independe
Directors as defined in the listing standards ef YSE MKT. Our current independent Directors @tarence Zierhut, Marco Laterza, A
Mack, and Walter O. Bigby, Jr. Each of our comeat is constituted solely by independent Directors.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of amual financial statements
2013 and 2012 and the reviews of the financialestents included in our Forms I®-or services normally provided by the accounta
connection with statutory and regulatory filings fbose fiscal years were $180,000 and $180,08pgeively.
AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of 40&(k) plan for 2013 and 20
were $13,000 and $12,500, respectively.
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TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foegaration of federal and state income tax retamtstax consulting costs relatet
notices from taxing authorities for 2013 and 20ktev$96,408 and $77,062, respectively. 2013 fessiatlude consultation on state sales
matters and preparation of certain sales tax rsturn
PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The engagement of CF & Co., L.L.P. was entered jmitmsuant to the approval policies and procedufethe Audit Committee
Before CF & Co., L.L.P. was engaged to render ses/the engagement was approved by the Audit CdeenifThe engagement is for a

and tax services which were detailed separatehe Audit Committee implemented its approval procedyi.e., they were not delegated to
other party. All of the services provided were-ppproved by the Audit Committee.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(@ (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Technekgnc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe-2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required tiildse by Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph lfeJow. Schedule ISchedule ¢
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ethddecember 31, 2013, 2012, and 2(

Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Provision for Inventorie
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 205,60 $ 52,83t $ — $ 258,43!
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 258,43! % 120,00( $ 138,68! $ 239,75.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 239,75. $ 530,00 $ 88,357 $ 681,39!
Provision for Accounts Receivabl
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 780,900 $ 1,298,04. $ — 8 2,078,94.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 2,078,94. $ 107,24t % — 8 2,186,19
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 2,186,190 $ 50,00 $ 537,68: $ 1,698,501
Deferred Tax Valuatio
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 5,442,68. $ — 3 559,26t $ 4,883,411
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 488341 $ 1,155,63: $ — 3 6,039,05.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,039,05 $ 2,404,76. $ — 8 8,443,81
Provision for Rebate (A) (B) ©
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 11,102,32 $ 19,229,30 $ 14,172,84 % 16,158,79
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 16,158,79 $ 19,615,388 $ 13,78091 $  21,993,26
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 2199326 $ 1791244 $ 13,112,04 $  26,793,66
(A) Represents estimated rebates deducted from gnomsues
(B) Represents rebates credited to the distributoichadye offs against the allowar

©) Includes $3,611,962; $3,036,564; and $2,170,76¥coounts payable for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respagtithe remainder include:
contre-account for credits taken by the distributor forietha credit memorandum has not been issued bg tingpany
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(3)

Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated herein by reference to exhibits previouisidfwith the SEC.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit Description of Document

l?:l((i)). Restated Certificate of Formation with CertificatdDesignation, Preferences, Rights and LimitatiohClass B Preferred Stc
(all Series) *

3(ii) Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of R

4 Restated Certificate of Formation with CertificatdDesignation, Preferences, Rights and LimitagiohClass B Preferred Stc
(all Series) *

10.1 Sample United States Distribution Agreement

10.2 Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement*

10.3 Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. Steted as of January 1, 2008 (This is a manageownpensatic
contract.) *x**

10.4 Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. 8haviRT| dated the 29 day of June 1995**

10.5 First Amendment to Technology License Agreemenivbeh Thomas J. Shaw and RTI dated the 3rd daylypf2008 *****

10.6 Second Amendment to Technology License Agreememidesn Thomas J. Shaw and Retractable Technoldgesdated as
the 7th day of September, 201

10.7 Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and ThothaShaw as of the 30 day of September, 2002 and Promis
Notet T

10.8 RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan**

10.9 First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan’

10.10 Retractable Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock Opti@m Pttt

10.11 Thomas J. Shaw Nonqualified Stock Option Agreentesited Outside of Any Ple

10.12 Voting Agreement Between Thomas J. Shaw and SuzAngest dated November 8, 20¢°

14 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Code of BusinessdGarand Ethiceoe

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing occo

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officeooe

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officeooo

32 Section 1350 Certificatioreoee
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Exhibit Description of Document
No.
101 The following materials from this report, formattedXBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Languag@)Balance Sheets as

December 31, 2013 and 2012, (ii) the Statemen@pafrations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2and 2011, (iii) tt
Statements of Changes in Stockholdétquity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122011, (iv) the Statements
Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2@12, 2nd 2011, and (v) Notes to Financial Stategneoce

* Incorporated herein by reference to RTI's Form 16k on November 15, 2010

** Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on May 13, 201(

*rk Incorporated herein by reference to 's Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(
Fhkk Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

Fkkkk Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-K filed on March 31, 200

t Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 201

T Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on October 10, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-KSB filed on March 31, 200

Tttt Incorporated herein by reference to ’s definitive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2(
° Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-K filed on March 31, 201!

o0 Incorporated herein by reference to 's Schedule TO filed on October 17, 2(
Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on February 19, 201

Filed herewitt

(c) Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repot
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant

By: /s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: March 31, 201«

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

/sl Steven R. Wisne

STEVEN R. WISNEFR

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, ENGINEERING
& PRODUCTION AND DIRECTOR

March 31, 201«

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER,
TREASURER, AND DIRECTOF

March 31, 201«

/sl Clarence Zierht

CLARENCE ZIERHUT
DIRECTOR

March 31, 201«

/s/ Amy Mack
AMY MACK
DIRECTOR

March 31, 201«

/s/ Marco Laterzi
MARCO LATERZA
DIRECTOR

March 31, 201«

/s] Walter O. Bighy, Ji
WALTER O. BIGBY, JR.
DIRECTOR

March 31, 201«
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Exhibit 22
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRkgistration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333875) of Retractable Technologies, Inc
our report dated March 31, 2014 relating to ouritanidthe financial statements and financial stagatschedule, which appear in this Ani
Report on Form 10-K of Retractable Technologies, tar the year ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF &Co,, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 201«




Exhibit 31.]
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tagqals presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduressed such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervis
to ensure that material information relating to tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finahoéporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiamulisclosure controls and procedures and presémttds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmos
recent fiscal quarter (the registramfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’'s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contre#r financial reporting which
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavamanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registra#t’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 201

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.z
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tagqals presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proeeda be designed under our supervi
to ensure that material information relating to tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financegorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registramfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’'s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contre#r financial reporting which
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavamanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registra#t’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 201

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING OFFICER




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the AnnuREport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Canmyj) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2013, as filed with the United St&tesurities and Exchange Commission on the datehg@he “Report”), the undersigned
Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Officer, and Daosigla Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, do hereby iégrpursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9¢&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExagfeAct of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: March 31, 201
/s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW

PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER, AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING OFFICER




